
 

 

HOUSING COMMISSION AGENDA 
Regular Meeting:  September 13, 2017 

Time:  8:00 a.m. 
HACA Board Room, 22941 Atherton Street, Hayward, CA  94541 

 
The public is welcome at all Housing Commission meetings.  If you wish to speak on a matter NOT on the Agenda, please file a Public Comment card with the 
Commission Clerk.  Upon recognition by the Chairperson during Public Comment, state your name, comments and/or questions.  Anyone wishing to address the 
Commission on an agenda item or on business introduced by the Housing Commission may do so when the Chairperson calls for comments on the agenda item.  
Please be brief and limit your comments to the specific subject under discussion.   NOTE:  Only matters within the Housing Commission’s jurisdiction may be 
addressed.   
 
To allow the opportunity for all to speak, a time limit of 3 minutes has been set for public speakers wishing to address the Housing Commission.  The Chairperson 
has the discretion to further limit this time if warranted by the number of speakers. 
 
The Housing Commission Secretary of the Housing Authority of the County of Alameda has, on Thursday, September 7, 2017 duly distributed this Agenda to the 
Clerk of the Board of Supervisors for posting in the office of the Alameda County Administration Building and has posted it on the bulletin board of the Housing 
Authority of the County of Alameda. 
 
AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES:  In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if special assistance to participate in this meeting is needed, please 
contact the Housing Authority office at (510) 727-8511.  Notification at least 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the Housing Authority to make reasonable 
arrangements. 

 
   

PAGE 

1. CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL   

2. CLOSED SESSION 
Contract Negotiations with SEIU Local 1021 and the Housing Authority of the County of Alameda 
Labor Negotiations Pursuant to Government Code 54957.6 

3. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE JULY 26, 2017 MEETING ACTION 2 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT -  On matters not on the Agenda   

5. NEW BUSINESS   

5-1. Resolution Approving a Memorandum of Understanding with SEIU Local 1021 ACTION 9 

5-2. Approve Section 8 HCV Payment Standards ACTION 12 

5-3. FSS Program Report INFORMATION 14 

6. COMMITTEE REPORTS   

7. COMMISSIONER REPORTS   

8. COMMUNICATIONS   

9. ADJOURNMENT   

 



 

2 
 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  3. 

 

 

 

 

 

MINUTES 
July 26, 2017 

 
 
 



 

3 
 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  3. 

 

 
HOUSING COMMISSION MINUTES 
SPECIAL MEETING: JULY 26, 2017 

HACA BOARD ROOM, 22941 ATHERTON STREET, HAYWARD, CA 94541 
 

SUMMARY ACTION MINUTES 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
 Call to Order 

Chairperson Gacoscos called the meeting to order at 8:02 a.m. 
 
Roll Call 
Present:   Cmrs. Biddle, Buckholz, Gacoscos, Gerry, Hannon, Peixoto and Steiner 
Excused:   Cmrs.  Ballew, Maass and Patz 

 
2. CLOSED SESSION 
 Contract Negotiations with SEIU Local 1021 and the Housing Authority of the County of Alameda 

Labor Negotiations Pursuant to Government Code 54957.6  

The Housing Commission entered into a closed session at 8:03 a.m. and reconvened in open session at 
8:28 a.m.  Chairperson Gacoscos reported that no reportable actions were taken in the closed session. 

 

3. ACTION:  ELECTION OF OFFICERS FOR THE 2017-2018 FISCAL YEAR 
 Christine Gouig introduced this item.  Chairperson Gacoscos announced that the Nominating 

Committee selected Cmrs. Gerry and Hannon as candidates for the Chairperson and Vice Chairperson 
positions.  The Commission elected the recommended candidates and newly-elected Chairperson 
Gerry chaired the remainder of the meeting. 
 
Motion/Second:  Peixoto/Buckholz. 
Ayes:  All.      Motion passed.  APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED.   

 
4. ACTION:  APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE JUNE 14, 2017 HOUSING COMMISSION MEETING 

 Recommendation:  Approve the minutes of the June 14, 2017 Housing Commission meeting as 
presented. 
 
Motion/Second:  Peixoto/Buckholz 
Ayes:  6;  1 abstention:  Cmr. Steiner.      Motion passed.  APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED.   

 
5. PUBLIC COMMENT – ON MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA 
 None. 



 

4 
 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  3. 

6. NEW BUSINESS 
 

6-1. PRESENTATION:  PRESENTATION OF THE 2017 HACA SCHOLARSHIP WINNERS 
 Daniel Taylor, Special Programs Manager, presented the staff report.  Mr. Taylor announced the 

names of the 2017 HACA Scholarship winners who were present at the meeting and each of the 
winners described their plans, goals and achievements.   
 
Mr. Taylor also announced the names of the scholarship winners who were not present at the 
meeting and the schools they were attending. 
 
Commission Discussion:  Cmr. Peixoto commented that it is amazing to hear how the HACA 
scholarship program has helped students progress through the years from junior college on to 
universities.  Cmr. Hannon commended the scholarship winners for their perseverance.  Cmr. 
Gacoscos congratulated the winners and praised them for their achievements.  Chairperson Gerry 
praised the scholarship winners.  He encouraged them to continue working hard and commented 
that they can achieve anything they set their minds on. 

 
6-2. PRESENTATION:  RECOGNIZE RON DESILVA AND LISA GATCHALLAN FOR THEIR YEARS OF SERVICES 

 Christine Gouig presented the staff report.  Ms. Gouig described HACA’s employee service awards 
and explained that the program includes a presentation to the Housing Commission of employees 
who have achieved 25 years or more of service.  Cathy Leoncio, Finance Director, recognized Ron 
DeSilva and Lisa Gatchallan, Account Specialists in HACA’s Accounting Department.  She described 
their individual roles at HACA through the years, praised them for their hard work, and expressed 
her gratitude to them for their dedication to the agency.   
 
Mr. DeSilva stated that he was honored to receive this recognition and thanked his co-workers for 
the support that they have given him through the years.   
 
Ms. Gatchallan expressed appreciation for Ms. Leoncio, her co-workers and the Accounting 
Department. 
 
The Housing Commission, staff and public applauded Mr. DeSilva and Ms. Gatchallan. 
 
Commission Discussion:  Cmr. Hannon thanked Mr. DeSilva and Ms. Gatchallan for their years of 
dedicated service as public servants.   

 

6-3. PRESENTATION:  RECOGNIZE ROGER ESCOBAR AS HACA’S SHINING STAR FOR JULY-DECEMBER 
2017 

 Christine Gouig introduced Roger Escobar, Housing Specialist in the Programs Department, as 
HACA’s Shining Star for July-December 2017.  Linda Evans, FSS Leadworker and HACA 
Communications Committee Chairperson, read the comments that were submitted by those who 
nominated Roger.  The Commission, staff and public applauded Roger and Chairperson Gerry 
presented him with a certificate.  Roger thanked the Housing Commission for taking time for this 
recognition and thanked his co-workers for the nomination and award. 
 
Mary Rizzo-Shuman, Programs Manager, praised Roger for the work and support that he provides to 
the Programs Department and the compassion and care that Roger exhibits when dealing with the 
program participants.   



 

5 
 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  3. 

 Corey White, Program Integrity Officer from the Alameda County District Attorney’s Office, praised 
and congratulated Roger and thanked him for the work that he does with Program Integrity.  
Meranda Jones, Leasing Services Leadworker, commented that Roger deserves the award and 
recognition and praised him for his contributions to the Programs Department.  Dina Lada, Housing 
Management Leadworker, thanked Roger for sharing his knowledge and for his help with 
challenging cases. 

 

6-4. RESOLUTION NO. 09-17:  AUTHORIZING SUBMISSION OF THE SECTION EIGHT MANAGEMENT 
ASSESSMENT PROGRAM CERTIFICATION  

 Christine Gouig introduced this item, described HUD’s Section Eight Management Assessment 
Program (SEMAP) and reported that HACA received an overall rating of “High Performer.”  Jennifer 
Cado, Senior Administrative Analyst, presented the staff report.  Ms. Cado explained the 14 key 
indicators that are used in SEMAP to measure HACA’s performance in the administration of the 
Section 8 program.  Ms. Cado thanked staff for their hard work over the past year.  Ms. Gouig 
praised staff for doing such a great job in an environment of reduced funding.  Ms. Gouig also 
thanked Ms. Cado for the work that she does with the SEMAP process. 
 
Recommendation:  Adopt Resolution No. 09-17 authorizing submission of the Section Eight 
Management Assessment Program certification. 
 
Commission Discussion:  Cmr. Gacoscos thanked staff for their hard work and congratulated staff for 
achieving the “High Performer” rating. 
 
Motion/Second:  Steiner/Hannon. 
Ayes:  All.   Motion passed.  APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED. 

 

6-5. ACTION:  APPROVE REVISIONS TO HACA’S SECTION 8 ADMINISTRATIVE PLAN 
 Christine Gouig introduced this item and described the process for revising HACA’s Section 8 

Administrative Plan (Admin Plan).  Oscar Macias, Administrative Analyst, presented the staff report.  
Mr. Macias reported that staff is proposing to amend HACA’s Admin Plan in order to incorporate 
changes to HUD regulations and/or streamline HACA’s practices or program initiatives.  He 
described the proposed revisions and recommended that the Housing Commission approve the 
revisions as presented. 
 
Commission Discussion:  Cmr. Hannon and Mr. Macias discussed the revisions proposed to Chapter 
16 of the Admin Plan regarding notification of the Violence Against Women Act (VAWA).  They also 
discussed the timing for implementing HUD updates in HACA’s Admin Plan.  Cmr. Hannon thanked 
Mr. Macias for his thorough report.  Cmr. Buckholz asked if program participants are provided a 
copy of revisions to the Admin Plan.  Mr. Macias indicated that the Admin Plan is available on 
HACA’s website and that if a particular update requires notification to the program participants, 
staff will notify participants accordingly.  Ms. Gouig described what the VAWA notification mailing 
would entail. 
 
Motion/Second:  Biddle/Buckholz 
Ayes:  All.   Motion passed.   APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED. 



 

6 
 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  3. 

6-6. ACTION:  APPROVE MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING WITH PARTICIPATING COUNTY, CITIES 
AND AGENCIES (PCCA) FOR ASSESSMENT OF FAIR HOUSING PLAN 

 Christine Gouig presented the staff report.  Ms. Gouig reported that HACA will join with Alameda 
County, the cities in Alameda County and the other four housing authorities to develop an 
Assessment of Fair Housing Plan (AFH Plan) and that HACA plans to enter into an MOU with the 
participating entities that outlines the basis for sharing the tasks and costs.  Oscar Macias explained 
that some of the costs associated with this joint effort will go toward consultant costs. 
 
Recommendation:  Approve the Memorandum of Understanding with the participating county, 
cities and agencies for the Assessment of Fair Housing Plan and authorize the Executive Director to 
approve any amendments that may be necessary and to execute it on behalf of HACA. 
 
Commission Discussion:  Cmr. Hannon commented that this is a great example of collaboration 
among the various agencies in Alameda County. 
 
Motion/Second:  Hannon/Biddle. 
Ayes:  All.    Motion passed.   APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED. 

 

6-7. RESOLUTION NO. 10-17:  APPROVING REVISIONS TO HACA’S HARASSMENT, DISCRIMINATION 
AND RETALIATION POLICY 

 Charla Freckmann, Human Resources Manager, presented the staff report.  Ms. Freckmann 
reported that HACA’s Harassment, Discrimination and Retaliation Policy (the Policy) was last revised 
14 years ago.  She stated that HACA’s insurance provider, the Housing Authorities Risk Retention 
Pool (HARRP), recently implemented a new requirement that its member agencies review and 
update certain employment practices every three years and that this year the focus is on an 
agency’s harassment, discrimination and retaliation policy.  She stated that Liebert Cassidy 
Whitmore, HACA’s employment counsel, worked with HACA’s to review and revise the Policy.  Ms. 
Freckmann summarized the proposed changes to the Policy and recommended that the Housing 
Commission adopt the resolution. 
 
Recommendation:  Adopt Resolution No. 10-17 approving revisions to HACA’s Harassment, 
Discrimination and Retaliation Policy. 
 
Commission Discussion:  Cmr. Hannon and Ms. Freckmann discussed the process in the Policy with 
regard to responding to complaints in writing.  He and Ms. Freckmann also discussed an employee’s 
or management’s responsibility for reporting harassment or discrimination and the time in which 
incidents are reported.  Ms. Freckmann commented that HACA’s management staff attends 
mandatory training on preventing harassment, discrimination and retaliation in the work place.  Ms. 
Leoncio commented that it may not be ideal to place a limitation on the time that an employee has 
to report incidents. 
Motion/Second:  Gacoscos/Steiner. 
Ayes:  All.    Motion passed.   APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED. 

 

6-8. ACTION:  MANAGEMENT COMPENSATION SURVEY RESULTS 
 Christine Gouig introduced this item.  Charla Freckmann presented the staff report.  Ms. Freckmann 

reported that staff worked with the consulting firm of Koff and Associates to conduct a 
management compensation survey.  She described the components that were studied in the 
compensation survey and introduced Alyssa Thompson from Koff.  Ms. Thompson described the  



 

7 
 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  3. 

 analysis that Koff conducted and explained the survey results.  Ms. Freckmann described some of 
the recommendations that Koff has made with regard to compensation disparities that exist at 
HACA. 
 
Recommendation:  Accept the comparable agency salary survey and fringe benefit results, the range 
assignments retroactive to the first pay period of the current fiscal year and the recommendations 
for modifications in administering the Pay for Performance plan and authorize staff to continue to 
complete the three year and annual salary surveys. 
 
Commission Discussion:  Cmr. Steiner and Ms. Gouig discussed how the compensation disparities 
have affected recruitment.  Ms. Gouig explained that staff is only recommending that the 
Commission approve the results of the compensation survey at this time and that staff will return to 
the Commission with recommendations for management compensation.  Cmr. Biddle and Ms. Gouig 
discussed how often these management compensation surveys are conducted.  
Motion/Second:  Peixoto/Biddle. 
Ayes:  All.    Motion passed.   APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED. 

 

6-9. INFORMATION:  SECTION 8 SHORTFALL UPDATE 
 Jennifer Cado presented the staff report.  Ms. Cado described the actions staff continues to take to 

reduce HAP costs.  She also reported that HACA had submitted its application for shortfall funding. 
 

6-10. INFORMATION:  BUDGET STATUS REPORT 
 Report received with no questions or comments from the Housing Commission. 

 
6-11. INFORMATION:  PROGRAM ACTIVITY REPORT 
 Report received with no questions or comments from the Housing Commission. 

 
7. COMMITTEE REPORTS 

 None. 
 
8. COMMISSIONER REPORTS 

 Cmr. Peixoto announced that the City of Hayward hired a new Chief of Police.  Cmr. Biddle reported 
on his attendance at the grand opening of the Valor Crossing veterans’ housing project in Dublin. 

 
9. COMMUNICATIONS 

 Christine Gouig reported on her attendance at the 2017 National Association of Housing and 
Redevelopment Officials (NAHRO) Summer Conference that was held in Indianapolis.  

 
10. ADJOURNMENT 

 There being no further business to discuss, Chairperson Gerry adjourned the meeting at 9:42 a.m. 
 

Respectfully Submitted, 
 

  
 

Melissa Taesali 
Executive Assistant 

 Christine Gouig 
Executive Director/Housing Commission Secretary 
 
 

Approved: Pat Gacoscos 
Housing Commission Chairperson 



 

8 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
September 13, 2017 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

9 
 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  5-1. 
 

 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF ALAMEDA COUNTY 
 

AGENDA STATEMENT 
 

Meeting:  September 13, 2017 
 

 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The current MOU between the Housing Authority of the County of Alameda (HACA) and 
SEIU Local 1021, which represents all full time, non-confidential, non-management 
employees, expired on June 15, 2017.  The parties commenced formal negotiations for a 
successor MOU in May 2017.  The parties reached tentative agreement and the Union's 
negotiating team stated that it would submit the proposals in the tentative agreement 
to the membership for ratification, which was done.  A copy of the signed tentative 
agreement will be distributed at the meeting. 
 
DISCUSSION and ANALYSIS 
 
The changes to the former MOU are on pages 1, 27 and 39.  All other terms and 
provisions remain the same. 
 
Pages 1 (introductory paragraph) and 39 (Section 35:  Term of Memorandum) reflect 
changes to the dates/term of the MOU only.  The substantive change regarding wages 
on page 27 is as follows: 
 
SECTION 12. WAGES 
 

A. A $2,000.00$3,500.00 one-time lump sum payment will be 
made to all bargaining unit members in paid status to be paid no 
later than May 5, 2016September 21, 2017.   

Subject: Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with SEIU Local 1021 
  
Exhibits Attached: 1. Resolution No.  11-17 

2. Attachment A:  Revised Successor MOU 
  
Recommendations: 1. Adopt Resolution Approving Successor MOU 
  
Financial Statement: $250,000 approximate cost for bargaining unit employees 



 

10 
 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  5-1. 
 
 

 
B. Step increases shall be awarded in accordance with Article 3.2.1. 

of the Personnel Rules. 
C. A five percent (5%) cost of living adjustment will be 

implemented effective with pay period 16-14 which 
corresponds to the pay date of July 14, 2016. 

   
DC. The Authority agrees to freeze an Administrative Clerk 
 position for the duration of this Memorandum of 
 Understanding. 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends your Commission adopt a resolution approving an MOU with SEIU    
1021 that includes the terms reflected above.  The exact language changes for the 2017-
2018 MOU are attached. 
 



 

11 
 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  5-1. 

 
 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 11-17 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (MOU)  
WITH SEIU LOCAL 1021 FOR FISCAL YEAR 2017-2018 

 
WHEREAS, the Housing Authority of the County of Alameda (“Authority”) recognizes Service 

Employees International Union (SEIU) Local 1021 as the exclusive representative for the Authority’s 
general employees bargaining unit, the classifications for which are listed in Appendix A to the Parties’ 
Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”) for fiscal year 2017-2018; and 

WHEREAS, during the Spring of 2017, the Authority sought to begin formal labor negotiations 
for an MOU to replace the former two-year MOU, which expired on June 15, 2017; and 

WHEREAS, the Parties began negotiations on May 12, 2017; and 

WHEREAS, the Parties have now come to agreement on an MOU for the 2017-2018 fiscal year;  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Housing Commission of the Housing Authority of the 
County of Alameda that the Commission does hereby approve and authorize execution of the 
Memorandum of Understanding with SEIU Local 1021 for the 2017-2018 fiscal year as presented at this 
meeting. 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Housing Commission of the Housing Authority of the 
County of Alameda on this 13th day of September 2017 by the following vote: 
 
AYES: 
 

NOES: 
 

ABSTAIN: 
 

EXCUSED: 
 

ABSENT: 
     __________________________________ 
     Mark Gerry 
     Housing Commission Chairperson 

Attest: 
 

_________________________________________ 
Christine Gouig 
Executive Director/Housing Commission Secretary  Adopted:  _____________________ 
 
 



 

12 
 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  5-2. 
 

 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA 

AGENDA STATEMENT 

Meeting:  September 13, 2017 

Subject: Section 8 HCV Payment Standards  

  

Exhibits Attached: None 

  

Recommendation: Approve the Proposed Payment Standards for the HCV Program 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
A housing authority’s payments to landlords to subsidize the rents of Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher 
(HCV) Program participants are called “Housing Assistance Payments” (HAP).  A formula determines the 
total HAP funding that HUD provides annually to each housing authority.  Congress may or may not 
appropriate sufficient funds to fund 100% of that formula. 

A housing authority must manage the HAP funds that it receives from HUD to pay landlords enough so 
that families can afford modest housing and yet not run out of money before the end of the year when 
new funding is provided.  If a housing authority sets the rents that families are allowed to pay too low 
for its market area, families won’t be able to find suitable housing and/or will have to pay too much of 
their income (i.e., more than 30% - 40%) for rent.  If the housing authority sets rents too high, it will run 
out of HAP funds and will have to reduce the size of its program, possibly having to terminate the leases 
of participating families. 

The rents that a housing authority allows participating families to pay are determined, in large part, by 
HUD.  Every year, HUD publishes “fair market rents” for each market area in the United States to be 
effective on or around October 1 of that year.  Fair market rent (FMR) is the rent, including the cost of 
utilities (except telephone and cable TV), that must be paid in the market area to rent privately owned, 
decent, safe and sanitary rental housing that is modest (i.e., non-luxury).  It is not intended that the 
FMRs enable a participating family to rent every type of unit in a community. 

After HUD publishes the FMRs, every housing authority must then adopt one or more “payment 
standard” schedules based on those FMRs.  A housing authority may either adopt a single payment 
standard amount for its whole FMR area, or a separate payment standard amount for each designated 
part of the FMR area (e.g., for each city). 

The payment standard establishes the voucher amount for each unit size, i.e., the maximum gross rent 
(rent plus utilities) that will be used by the housing authority to compute the monthly HAP that it will 
pay the landlord on behalf of the Section 8 family.  The actual gross rent that the housing authority will 
use is based on the reasonableness of the rent in comparison to that of similar units in the same general 
neighborhood; it is not automatically the payment standard. 

The housing authority may establish the payment standard amount for a unit size at any level between 
90% and 110% of the published FMR for that unit size.  HUD approval is not required to establish a 



 

13 
 

payment standard amount in that range (called the “basic range”), but is required to establish a 
payment standard amount that is higher or lower than the basic range. 

 
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 

HUD has published the 2017-2018 FMRs that will become effective October 2, 2017.  Our FMRs are 
6.70% - 13.49% higher than last year’s. 

As we are in shortfall and need to realize cost savings, staff recommends maintenance of our 2017 
payment standards except where the 2017 payment standards fall outside the basic range.  Our 
payment standards fall outside the basic range only for the large bedroom units (i.e., four or more 
bedrooms) in the cities of Hayward, San Leandro and San Lorenzo, where they are 89% of the 2018 basic 
range.  Staff recommends adjusting these up to 90% in order to remain within the basic range. 

Staff proposes the following to be made effective October 2, 2017: 

 For the cities of Albany, Castro Valley (u), Dublin, Emeryville, Fremont, Newark, Pleasanton and 
Union City make no change to HACA’s current payment standards. 

 For the cities of Hayward, San Leandro and San Lorenzo (u), set the payment standards for the four, 
five, six and seven bedroom units at 90% of the FMR, an amount equal to a 1% increase in the 
current payment standard. 

 
PAYMENT STANDARDS BY CITY 

 

 Unit Size by Bedrooms 

City Studio 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 

Albany $1,521  $1,826  $2,303  $3,198  $3,579  $4,116  $4,652  $5,190  

Castro Valley (u) $1,521  $1,826  $2,303  $3,198  $3,579  $4,116  $4,652  $5,190  

Dublin $1,579  $1,895  $2,390 $3,319  $3,714  $4,271  $4,828  $5,386  

Emeryville $1,521  $1,826  $2,303 $3,198  $3,579  $4,116  $4,652  $5,190  

Fremont $1,550  $1,861  $2,347 $3,258  $3,646  $4,194  $4,740  $5,288  

Hayward $1,492  $1,792  $2,260  $3,138  $3,552 $4,085 $4,617 $5,150 

Newark $1,550  $1,861  $2,347  $3,258  $3,646  $4,194  $4,740  $5,288  

Pleasanton $1,579  $1,895  $2,390  $3,319  $3,714  $4,271  $4,828  $5,386  

San Leandro $1,492  $1,792  $2,260  $3,138  $3,552 $4,085 $4,617 $5,150 

San Lorenzo (u) $1,492  $1,792  $2,260  $3,138  $3,552 $4,085 $4,617 $5,150 

Union City $1,550  $1,861  $2,347  $3,258  $3,646  $4,194  $4,740  $5,288  

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that your Housing Commission approve the payment standards as proposed. 

 



 

14 
 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  5-3. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FAMILY SELF-SUFFICIENCY (FSS) 
PROGRAM REPORT 

 
 
 
 



 

15 
 

 HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  5-3. 

 
 

To:  Christine Gouig, Executive Director 

From:  Daniel Taylor, Special Programs Manager 

Re:  FSS Program Summary 

CC:  Linda Evans, Phyllis Harrison, Mary Sturges, Danielle Roundtree 

Date:  August 1, 2017 

 

 

Program Summary July 2017 
Total Clients Under Contract: 157 
MDRC: 100 
Graduates: 0 
Escrow Disbursed: $0                               
Ports In: 1 
Ports Out: 0 
Terminations: 0 
New Contracts: 6 

 
FSS PROGRAM NEWS:  

 
Health and Resource Fair 
 
The FSS team is finalizing the details of our annual Health and Resource Fair. The fair is 
scheduled for Saturday, August 19, 2017, from 10:30 a.m.-1:00 p.m. at HACA. 
Community vendors with information tables, mini workshops, poster drawings and a free 
backpack with school supplies are some of the activities planned for the parents and 
children. A few of the vendors include: 
 

 Hayward Fire Department  

 BART – employment opportunities 

 Life Coach Gloria Brown 

 Alameda County Child Support 

 Head Start 

 Operation HOPE – homeownership information 

 Eden Area One Stop Career Center 

 Children’s Hospital – child dental information 

 Eden Information and Referral (Eden I & R) / 2-1-1 

 And many others… 
 

We will, once again, have volunteer students from Arroyo High School in San Lorenzo 
and employees from the Kohl’s Cares program. 



 

16 
 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  5-3. 

 
Wills and Trust Workshop 
 
On Thursday, July 27, 2017, the Law Office of Phillip Ghaderi presented an estate 
planning workshop at HACA. Participants were able to get information and ask questions 
regarding the following: 
 

 What is estate planning? 

 What happens without an estate plan? 
 

 Why create an estate plan? 

 Powers of attorney 

 What is probate? 

 Living revocable trust 

 Estate taxes and gift taxes 
 

Many participants stayed after the workshop ended in order to ask the attorney specific 
questions regarding their individual situations. There were 30 participants in attendance. 
 
Case Management Referrals = 8 

Job Lead Referrals = 70 

 

 



  

17 
 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  5-3. 

 
 
 

 

To:  Christine Gouig, Executive Director 

From:  Daniel Taylor, Special Programs Manager 

Re:  FSS Program Summary 

CC:  Linda Evans, Phyllis Harrison, Mary Sturges, Danielle Roundtree 

Date:  September 1, 2017 
 

 

 

Program Summary August 2017 
Total Clients Under Contract: 163 
MDRC: 100 
Graduates: 0 
Escrow Disbursed: $0                               
Ports In: 0 
Ports Out: 0 
Terminations: 0 
New Contracts: 8 
 

 

FSS PROGRAM NEWS:  

 

Health and Resource Fair 

 

On Saturday, August 19, 2017, from 10:30 a.m. – 1:00 p.m., the FSS team held its most 

successful annual Health and Resource Fair to date. Seventy (70) FSS participants and their 

household members participated in the event. The kids drew posters for NAHRO’s “What Home 

Means to Me” poster contest and received a free backpack filled with school supplies. There 

were light refreshments and door prizes for the FSS participants. The FSS team greatly 

appreciates the terrific volunteer support it received from HACA staff, FSS participants, Kohl’s 

Department Store and students from Arroyo High School in San Lorenzo. Kohl’s made a $1,000 

donation because their staff volunteered. The FSS team would also like to thank Commissioner 

Don Biddle for attending the event. A few of the vendors included: 

 

 Hayward Fire Department (brought a fire truck) 

 BART- employment opportunities  

 Operation HOPE – homeownership information 

 Eden Area One Stop Career Center 

 Eden Information and Referral (Eden I & R) / 2-1-1 

 Alameda County Child Support 

 



  

18 
 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  5-3. 

 

The evaluations we received from participants and the 20 vendors that attended were great. 

 

“It was my pleasure to be there. Thank you for taking good care of us with snacks and food. I 

have a lot of parents that feel that Job Corps will be a good source for their youth. I will be 

reaching out to them. Have a great week.” 

 

“It was my pleasure to be there for the first time and I look forward to coming again next year.  I 

would like to thank you for all your hard work and efforts to accommodate us all.  Also thank you 

for the delicious lunch and your hospitality.  I made some great connections with other Agencies 

and service providers as well, which I will refer clients to.  I also gave my contact information to 

clients and hope to be able to assist our community members in a professional and personable 

manner in the future.  Again, thank you for all that you did to make the Event a success.” 

 

“Miss Phyllis and Daniel, thank you for having Spectrum at your resource fair this past Saturday. 

It was very well-organized. You do great work to help the community! Thank you for lunch and 

thank you for helping us spread the word about Spectrum. Please count us in again next year! 

Have a great week. Thomas.”  

 

FSS Funding 

 

The HUD FSS NOFA has been published and proposal applications are due by September 15, 

2017. 

 

Case Management Referrals = 20 

Job Lead Referrals = 114 

 



   

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT A 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  5-1.

ATTACHMENT A



 

HACA – SEIU 1021 MOU 
June 1565, 20175 – June 145, 20187 

1 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
BETWEEN THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA 

AND 

UNITED SERVICE EMPLOYEES, LOCAL 1021 

 

THIS MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING is entered into by the Housing 

Authority of the County of Alameda, said political subdivision hereafter designated as Housing 

Authority, and the United Service Employees, Local 1021 of the Service Employees International 

Union, AFL-CIO hereafter designated as "Union" as a recommendation to the Housing Authority of 

the County of Alameda Housing Commission of those conditions of employment which are to be in 

effect during the period of June 1565, 20175 to and including June 145, 20187 and for those 

employees working in representation units referred to in Section 1 hereof. 

 

 

SECTION 1. RECOGNITION 
 

A. The Housing Authority recognizes the Union as the exclusive bargaining representative for all 

full-time employees working in classifications included in the Bargaining Unit as specifically 

enumerated in  the Salary Schedule attached hereto and to any other classifications which may 

be established substantially within the scope of the duties now included within these 

classifications.  The representation of the Housing Authority and Unions shall meet for the 

purpose of assigning any other newly-created classifications to the appropriate bargaining 

units within thirty days after creation.  Such placement shall be by mutual consent.  In case of 

disagreement, an arbitrator shall decide the matter. 

 

B. In disputes between the Housing Authority and the Union over the assignment of newly 

created classifications to appropriate bargaining units, the arbitrator shall decide the matter on 

the following basis: 

 

1. The arbitrator shall reject any claim by the Union to any newly created classification 

whose duties are substantially within scope of: 

 

(a) management designated classifications; e.g. project specialists, management 

specialists, administrative interns or other administrative classifications, or 

(b) classifications represented by other employee organizations. 

 

2. The arbitrator shall reject any claim of the Union to any newly created classification 

which is other than full-time permanent or probationary unless the employees in such 

status have previously voted to be represented by the Union. 

 

3. The arbitrator shall determine any dispute over whether or not the scope of duties of a 

newly created classification is substantially within the scope of duties now included 

within an SEIU represented classification or if a newly created classification is 

without clear recent precedent in the Housing Authority service, whether or not the 

duties of such classification are, in general character, similar to those within SEIU 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  5-1.

ATTACHMENT A



 

HACA – SEIU 1021 MOU 
June 1565, 20175 – June 145, 20187 

2 

represented units provided, however, that the arbitrator shall have no power to assign a 

supervisory classification, as defined in the Meyers-Milias-Brown Act to a non-

supervisory bargaining unit represented by the Union.  In case of an arbitration 

involving classifications without clear recent precedent in the Housing Authority 

service, the arbitrator shall receive as relevant evidence the views of affected 

employees. 

 

4. In the resolution of disputes arising from this Section 1., the provisions of Section 20. 

F. of the Memorandum of Understanding shall apply to the selection of an arbitrator. 

 

 

SECTION 2. NO DISCRIMINATION 
 

A. DISCRIMINATION PROHIBITED.  No employee shall be appointed, reduced, or 

removed, or in any way be favored or discriminated against because of political or religious 

opinions or affiliations, or because of racial or national origin; and to the extent prohibited by 

law, no person shall be discriminated against because of age, sex or physical disability. 

 

B. NO DISCRIMINATION ON ACCOUNT OF UNION ACTIVITY.  Neither Housing 

Authority nor employee organizations shall interfere with, intimidate, restrain, coerce, or 

discriminate against employees because of the exercise of rights to engage in Union activity, 

or, except as provided in Section 3. herein, because of the failure to exercise rights to engage 

in Union activity. 

 

 

SECTION 3. UNION SECURITY AND AGENCY FEE 
 

A. NOTICE OF RECOGNIZED UNION.  The Housing Authority shall post within the 

employee work or rest area a written notice which sets forth the classifications included 

within each representation unit referred to in Section 1. hereof and which includes any 

classification existing in the department or agency, and the name and address of the 

recognized employee organizations for each such unit. 

 

The department or agency shall also give a written notice on a form provided by the Union, to 

persons newly employed in representation unit classifications, which notice shall contain the 

name and address of the employee organization recognized for such unit and the fact that the 

Union is the exclusive bargaining representative for the employee's unit and classification. 

 

B. PAYROLL DEDUCTION.  The Authority shall deduct Union membership dues, premiums 

for approved insurance programs and any other mutually agreed upon payroll deduction from 

the pay of Union members.  These deductions must be authorized in writing by the employee 

on an authorization card acceptable to the Authority and the Union.  The Authority shall remit 

such sums to the Union as soon as possible after deduction. 

 

 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  5-1.

ATTACHMENT A



 

HACA – SEIU 1021 MOU 
June 1565, 20175 – June 145, 20187 

3 

 

C. EMPLOYEE RIGHTS. 

 

1. The Authority and the Union recognize the right of employees to form, join and 

participate in lawful activities of employee organizations.  Neither party shall 

discriminate against an employee in the exercise of these alternative rights. 

 

2. Accordingly, membership in the Union shall not be compulsory.  An employee has the 

right to choose either: to become a member of the Union; or, to pay to the Union a fee 

for representation services; or, to refrain from either of the above course of action 

upon the grounds set forth in Section G. below. 

 

D. UNIT MEMBER'S OBLIGATIONS TO EXCLUSIVE REPRESENTATION.  An 

employee who does not fall within the exempted category as set forth in Section G.1. below, 

and who does not become a member in the Union within thirty (30) days following either the 

date upon which this Memorandum of Understanding is executed or the date upon which said 

employee was formally hired by the Authority as a bargaining unit employee, whichever date 

is later, must as a condition of employment in the Authority pay to the Union an agency fee, 

in exchange for representation services necessarily performed by the Union in its capacity as 

the exclusive bargaining agent.  The standard of performance of the representation duties by 

the Union shall be the standard of the duty of fair representation as defined by law. 

 

E. DEFINITION OF AGENCY FEE.  The agency fee collected from non-Union bargaining 

unit employees pursuant to Section D. shall be limited to the Union's (local, state, and 

national) dues which may include the standard initiation fee, periodic dues and general 

assessments of the Union for representing such employees, minus the amount defined by law 

which is excludable for non-representational purposes as determined by the Union's internal 

procedure. 

 

F. ANNUAL VERIFICATION OF AGENCY FEE BY UNION. 

 

1. In the first year of this Agreement, only, within ninety (90) days of the ratification of 

this Agreement, the Union shall submit to the Authority a written financial report 

patterned after the financial report required pursuant to the Labor-Management 

Disclosure Act of 1959 or pursuant to Section 3546.5 of the California Government 

Code which the Union most recently filed with Alameda County under the terms of 

the  Memorandum of Understanding in effect between the Union and Alameda 

County. 

 

2. In each year thereafter for the life of this Agreement, the Union shall provide the 

Authority with the current financial report referred to in paragraph 1. above, within 

ninety (90) days following December 31 of each year. 

 

3. Copies of such reports shall be available for employees subject to the agency fee 

requirements of this section at the offices of the Union.  Failure to file such a report 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  5-1.

ATTACHMENT A



 

HACA – SEIU 1021 MOU 
June 1565, 20175 – June 145, 20187 

4 

within ninety (90) days of December 31 of each year shall result in the termination of 

all agency fee deductions without jeopardy to any employee, until said report is filed. 

 

G. EMPLOYEES EXEMPTED FROM OBLIGATION TO PAY UNION. 

 

1. Any unit member shall be exempted from the requirements of Section D. above if such 

employee is a member of a bona fide religion, body or sect which has historically held 

conscientious objections to joining or financially supporting public employee 

organizations. 

 

2. Such exempt employee shall, as an alternative to payment of an agency fee to the 

Union, pay an amount equivalent to such agency fee to  one of the following: 

(a) Women's Refuge; 

(b) Emergency Shelter Program; 

(c) Emergency Food Bank Network; or 

(d) Any charity jointly agreed upon by the Authority and the Union.  Such 

charities cannot be affiliated in any manner with the Union nor can such 

charities be related to an established religious organization. 

 

4. The Union, upon written request, may require such exempt employee to submit a 

written affidavit explaining the cause and nature of the allowable objection to payment 

of an agency fee.  In addition, the Union may require such exempt employee to submit 

proof of payment of an amount equivalent to such agency fee to one of the alternative 

funds or organizations listed above. 

 

5. The Union understands and agrees not to contest the designation of one Secretary 

position in the Administrative Services Unit, as a Confidential position and that said 

position will not be represented by the Union. 

 

H. PAYMENT METHOD. 

 

1. Employees who are not exempted from payment under Section G.1. above may pay 

not less frequently than monthly the properly determined agency fee directly to the 

Union. 

 

2. As an alternative to the direct payment method, an employee may voluntarily sign and 

deliver to the Authority a written assignment authorizing deduction of the properly 

established agency fee as defined in Section E. above, subject to the conditions set 

forth elsewhere in this Memorandum of Understanding for payroll deductions.  Upon 

voluntary authorization duly completed and executed, the Authority will deduct from 

the pay of the employee and pay to the Union the normal and regular monthly agency 

fee. 

 

3.        (a) In the event that an employee who is not exempted from payment under 

Section E. does not voluntarily sign and deliver to the Authority an 

authorization pursuant to Section H.2. or pay the agency fee directly to the 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  5-1.

ATTACHMENT A



 

HACA – SEIU 1021 MOU 
June 1565, 20175 – June 145, 20187 

5 

Union pursuant to Section H.1., the Union may request in writing that the 

Authority deduct from the pay of the employee and pay to the Union the 

normal and regular monthly agency fee without the approval of the employee. 

 

(b) Prior to making a request for the Authority to involuntarily deduct the agency 

fee from an employee’s pay, the Union shall notify the employee of the 

request. 

 

(c) If the unit member and the Union are unable to reach agreement on the manner 

of payment, the Union shall certify to the Authority in writing that the 

employee whose pay is to be affected by the deduction has: (1) refused to join 

the Union; and (2) has refused to tender the amount of the agency fee as 

defined herein; and (3) does not qualify for an exemption under Section G. 

herein.  Further, the Union shall certify in writing (4) that the amount of the fee 

meets the requirements of Section E. herein, and (5) that the Union has 

informed the unit members in writing of the Union's procedures for employees 

who contest the amount of the fee. 

 

(d) The Authority and the Union agree that such written certification is a condition 

precedent to the Authority's obligation to begin a payroll deduction retroactive 

to the date payments were first due. 

 

4.         (a) The Authority is under no obligation to make payroll deductions for periods 

during which an employee is either terminated from active employment or not 

on the Authority's active payroll for any reason, including, but not limited to, 

layoff and voluntary leave of absence for more than thirty (30) days. 

 

(b) The employee's earnings must be sufficient after other legal and required 

deductions are made to cover the amount of the dues or service fees 

authorized. 

 

(c) When an employee is in a non-pay status for an entire pay period, no with-

holding will be made to cover the pay period.  In the case of an employee who 

is in a non-pay status during only part of the pay period, and the salary is not 

sufficient to cover the full withholding, no deduction shall be made.  In this 

connection, all other legal and required deductions (including health care 

deductions) have priority over Union dues and service fees. 

 

5. Upon the rehiring of any employee, or upon the recalling of an employee from layoff 

status, if in either case the employee had been separated from employment for more 

than ninety (90) days, the Authority will resume or initiate dues or agency fee 

deductions for such employee only upon a valid dues agency fee deduction 

authorization or the process described in this section. 

 

 

 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  5-1.

ATTACHMENT A



 

HACA – SEIU 1021 MOU 
June 1565, 20175 – June 145, 20187 

6 

I. OBLIGATIONS OF THE PARTIES. 

 

1. AUTHORITY'S OBLIGATIONS.  The Authority's sole and exclusive obligations 

under this Article are to notify any employee who has failed to comply with the 

provisions of this Article that, as a condition of employment in the Authority, such 

employee must either become a Union member, pay an agency fee, either through 

voluntary or involuntary deductions, or establish an exempt status and make payment 

pursuant to provisions of Section H.1. of the Memorandum of Understanding, and to 

make payroll deductions pursuant to Section H.2. of this Memorandum.  Under no 

circumstances shall the Authority be required to dismiss any employee for failure to 

fulfill his/her obligations to pay the fees established herein. 

 

2. UNION'S OBLIGATIONS.  The Union, not the Authority, shall be solely 

responsible for requiring unit members to fulfill the obligations defined herein.  It is 

the exclusive obligation of the Union to take any steps necessary to ensure collection 

of any agency fees which may be due and payable to the Union in consideration for its 

services as the exclusive representative of unit employees.  The Union shall provide 

the Authority with fourteen (14) days advance notice prior to changes in rates in dues, 

fees, premiums or other mutually agreed upon payroll deductions from Union 

members. 

 

J. HOLD HARMLESS.  The Union shall hold the Authority harmless, and shall fully and 

promptly reimburse the Authority for any fees, costs, charges or penalties incurred in 

responding to or defending against any claims, disputes, challenges, whether formal or 

informal, which are actually brought, or attempted or threatened to be brought, against the 

Authority or any of its agents or employees in connection with the interpretation, application, 

administration, endorsement or enforcement of any section of this Agreement pertaining to 

agency fee.  Such reimbursement shall include, but not be limited to, court costs, litigation 

expenses, and reasonable attorney's fees incurred by the Authority.  The existence of or extent 

of any indemnification/reimbursement obligation under this section shall be subject to the 

grievance procedure set forth in this Memorandum of Understanding. 

 

K. EXPIRATION DATE OF AGENCY FEES PROVISIONS.  It is agreed and understood by 

the parties to this Memorandum of Understanding that the provisions, rights and obligations 

herein pertaining to payment of an agency fee and dues deductions shall not survive beyond 

the term of this Memorandum of Understanding and shall accordingly expire upon expiration 

of this Memorandum of Understanding unless mutually extended by the parties in writing. 

 

 

SECTION 4. UNION BULLETIN BOARD, MEETINGS, & ACCESS TO 

  EMPLOYEES 
 

A. BULLETIN BOARDS.  Reasonable space shall be allowed on bulletin boards as specified 

by the Executive Director for use by employees and Union to communicate with departmental 

employees. 

 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  5-1.

ATTACHMENT A



 

HACA – SEIU 1021 MOU 
June 1565, 20175 – June 145, 20187 

7 

Material shall be posted upon the bulletin board space as designated, and not upon walls, 

doors, file cabinets or any other place.  Posted material shall not be obscene, defamatory, or of 

a partisan political nature, nor shall it pertain to public issues which do not involve the 

Housing Authority employees.  All posted material shall bear the identity of the sponsor, shall 

be neatly displayed, and shall be removed when no longer timely.  The Union shall bear the 

responsibility for informing its members of this provision. 

 

B. USE OF HOUSING AUTHORITY FACILITIES.  Housing Authority facilities may be 

made available upon timely application for use by off-duty employees and the Union.  

Application for such use shall be made to the management person under whose control the 

facility is placed. 

 

C. JOB CONTACTS.  Any authorized representative of the Union shall have the right to 

contact individual employees working within the representation unit represented by his/her 

organization in Housing Authority facilities during business hours on matters within the scope 

of representation, providing prior approval has been received for each such contact from the 

Executive Director or his/her designated representative.  Permission for such contacts shall be 

granted not later than the end of the next workday after such request has been made, if in the 

judgment of the Executive Director or his/her designated representative, it will not disrupt the 

business of the work unit involved.  When contact on the work location is precluded by 

confidentiality of records, or of work situation, health and safety of employees or the public, 

or by disturbance to others, the Executive Director or his/her representative shall make other 

arrangements for a contact location removed from the work area during the same work day or 

the following work day. 

 

D. MEETINGS.  Meetings of a representative of a recognized employee organization and a 

group of employees shall not be permitted during working hours, except as provided in 

Section 20. hereof.  The Executive Director or his/her designated representative may, upon 

timely application, allow meetings of a representative of a recognized employee organization 

and a group of employees during the lunch period in Housing Authority facilities and at 

convenient dates.  No contacts shall be permitted during working hours with employees 

regarding membership, collection of monies, election of officers, or other similar internal 

employee organization business. 

 

E. DEPARTMENTAL MEETINGS.  Unless otherwise agreed, representatives or employees 

of employee organization shall not be permitted to attend meetings or conferences called by 

departmental personnel to attend to matters arising out of the normal course of departmental 

activities. 

 

As used herein, departmental meetings shall not include meetings between management and 

affected employees on matters mutually acknowledged to be submitted under Section 20. -   

Grievance Procedure. 

 

F. SHOP STEWARD SIGNS.  Shop stewards may identify themselves by use of an appropriate 

sign or placard so long as the sign or placard is no larger than four (4) inches by twelve (12) 

inches. 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  5-1.

ATTACHMENT A



 

HACA – SEIU 1021 MOU 
June 1565, 20175 – June 145, 20187 

8 

 

G. ACCESS TO RECORDS.  Union representatives shall be permitted to review employee 

records when accompanied by the employee or upon presentation of a written authorization 

signed by the employee.  The Housing Authority may verify any written authorization.  The 

Union's access to employee records shall be for good cause only.  Third party reference 

material shall not be made available. 

 

H.  DATA TO UNION.  The Housing Authority shall, upon request, supply the Union with the 

 names, home and office addresses, and classifications of all employees in represented units.  

 Such service shall be supplied at no more than cost to the Housing Authority. 

  

I.       ATTENDANCE AT COMMISSION MEETINGS. 

 

The Union may designate two representatives, only one of whom may be released to attend 

the monthly public meetings of the Housing Commission/Personnel Committee. The work 

schedule of the designated employee in attendance for that day shall be adjusted to allow for a  

sixty (60)-minute period for public meeting attendance at 8:00 a.m. under the provisions in 

Section 6.I.6. regarding the flexibility of work schedules for hardship reasons. 

 

In the event there is an executive session scheduled prior to the commencement of the public 

meeting, the employee’s work schedule shall start at his/her normal time.  After the 

conclusion of the executive session and when the public meeting begins, the designated 

employee may attend the public meeting on his/her own time using the hardship flexibility 

clause in Section 6.I.6. for purposes of adjusting their work schedule in order to allow the 

employee to resume a regular work schedule following the sixty (60)-minute period of 

meeting attendance. 

 

The employee attending the Housing Commission meeting may reduce their lunch break by 

fifteen (15) minutes for four (4) days within the same pay period that the Commission 

meeting occurs.  The employee attending the Housing Commission meeting is required to 

notify their supervisor in advance of the four (4) days for which a reduced lunch break is 

taken. 

 

J. OFFICIAL CORRESPONDENCE.  The Authority shall send copies of all formal, non-

confidential Authority-initiated correspondence regarding labor relations issues to both the 

SEIU Field Representative and the designated Chapter President, as long as SEIU has 

informed the Authority in writing of the identities of the field representative and the Chapter 

President. 

 

 

SECTION 5. SHOP STEWARDS 
 

A. PURPOSE.  The Housing Authority recognizes the need and affirms the right of the Union to 

designate shop stewards from among employees in the unit.  It is agreed that the Union in 

appointing such shop stewards does so for the purpose of promoting an effective relationship 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  5-1.

ATTACHMENT A



 

HACA – SEIU 1021 MOU 
June 1565, 20175 – June 145, 20187 

9 

between supervisors and employees by helping to settle problems at the lowest level of 

supervision. 

 

B. ROLE OF STEWARD AND SUPERVISOR.  The shop steward recognizes the fact that the 

supervisor is the key person in the department and, as such, is responsible to higher 

management for the quality and quantity of work.  As the supervisor is the key person for 

management, the shop steward is the key person for the Union.  They must promote and 

maintain good morale and friendly relations and must be willing to meet in good faith to settle 

grievances as they arise, exercising a positive approach.  There must be mutual respect on 

both sides in these relations.  The shop steward understands that his/her stewardship function 

does not relieve him/her from conforming to all rules of conduct and standards of 

performance established by law, regulation, Housing Authority or department policy, or 

Memorandum of Understanding. 

 

C. SELECTION OF STEWARDS.  The Union shall reserve the right to designate the method 

of selection of shop stewards.  The Union shall notify the Executive Director in writing of the 

names of the stewards and the units they represent.  If a change in stewards is made, the 

Executive Director shall be advised in writing of the steward being replaced and the steward 

named to take his/her place.  The number of stewards shall be mutually agreed upon  and a list 

of stewards shall be submitted to each department concerned. 

 

D. DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF STEWARDS.  The following functions are 

understood to constitute the complete duties and responsibilities of shop stewards for which 

they are entitled to on-duty time: 

 

1. After obtaining supervisory permission, shop stewards will be permitted to leave their 

normal work areas during on-duty time not to exceed eight (8) hours per pay period, in 

order to  investigate facts of potential grievances, facts and presentation of  grievances 

and/or to represent employees in disciplinary hearings and appeals conducted pursuant 

to Article 13.3. and 13.4. of the Personnel Rules.  The grievant shall also be granted 

reasonable time off.  The steward's workload may be adjusted, as deemed appropriate 

by the Executive Director.  To obtain permission to investigate a grievance or appeal 

on-duty time, the steward shall advise the supervisor of the grievant-appellant, of 

his/her investigation of the facts, and the general nature of the grievance or appeal.  

The shop steward is permitted to discuss the problem with all employees immediately 

concerned and outside interested parties will not be contacted by stewards as part of 

the grievance or appeal process.  The employee may be represented by a steward at 

such times as a grievance is reduced to writing. 

 

2. If (in the judgment of the supervisor because of the necessity of maintaining adequate 

level of service) permission cannot be granted immediately to the shop steward in 

order to present or investigate a grievance or appeal, such permission shall be granted 

by the supervisor no later than the next working day from the date the shop steward 

was denied permission. 

 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  5-1.

ATTACHMENT A



 

HACA – SEIU 1021 MOU 
June 1565, 20175 – June 145, 20187 

10 

E. CHANGES IN STEWARD OR NUMBER OF STEWARDS.  If management reassigns a 

shop steward which will leave his/her present work location without a steward, the Union 

shall have the right to appoint a replacement.  Should the Union wish to change stewards 

during the grievance procedure, it may do so provided that only one steward will be allowed 

time off from work upon one occasion to investigate the grievance. 

 

F. CONDUCT OF MEETINGS.  Any meeting of shop stewards and supervisors will be held in 

a quiet, dignified manner.  Management  employees will agree to recognize and work with 

Union stewards in a conscientious effort to settle problems at the earliest possible step of the 

grievance procedure. 

 

G. LIMITATIONS OF TIME OFF.  Stewards shall not be permitted time off from their work 

assignment for the purpose of conducting general Union business. 

 

H. SHOP STEWARDS.  The Union shall be entitled to appoint three (3) stewards for 

employees represented within the Memorandum of Understanding between the Alameda 

County Housing Authority and SEIU Local 1021. 

 

 

SECTION 6. HOURS OF WORK:  SCHEDULES AND REST PERIODS 
 
A. WORK SCHEDULE.  The Executive Director shall prepare a schedule showing the hours 

each employee is to work, and the days each employee is scheduled to work. 

 

B. WORK DAY AND WORK WEEK. 
 

 6.B.1. WORK DAY:  The normal workday shall be 8.33 hours, 8:00 a.m. to 5:05 p.m. for 

nine (9) days of a pay period, (45 minute lunch) for employees working seventy-five (75) 

hours per pay period. 
 

For employees working eighty (80) hours a pay period, the normal workday shall be nine (9) 

hours, 8:00 a.m. to 5:30 p.m. for five (5) days of a pay period, (one-half (½) hour lunch), and 

8.75 hours 8:00 a.m. to 5:30 p.m. for four (4) days of a pay period (forty-five (45) minute 

lunch). 
 

 6.B.2. WORK WEEK:  The work week shall commence on Friday at 12:00 a.m. for 

employees and run until the subsequent Friday at 12:00 a.m..  The first week of a pay period 

shall be 37.32 hours and the second week shall be 37.68 hours for 75-hour employees.  80-

hour employees shall work two (2) forty (40)-hour weeks in each pay period. 

 

C. HOURS OF WORK DEFINED.  Hours worked, including all hours suffered to be worked, 

shall include all time not under the control of the employee whether such hours are worked in 

the Housing Authority's work place or in some other place where the employee is carrying out 

the duties of the Housing Authority. 

 

1. All employees shall punch in at the beginning of the work day.  Employees who punch 

in on-time need not punch in or out the rest of the day. 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  5-1.

ATTACHMENT A



 

HACA – SEIU 1021 MOU 
June 1565, 20175 – June 145, 20187 

11 

 

2. Employees who punch in late must have their time cards signed by their department 

supervisor or the supervisor’s designee and punch in and out for lunch and at the end 

of the day. 

 

3. Housing Authority reserves the right to require any employee who  is habitually late 

returning from lunch to punch in and out until his or her behavior is corrected. 

 

D. REST PERIODS.  Each employee shall be granted a rest period of fifteen (15) minutes 

during each work period of more than three (3) hours' duration, provided however that rest 

periods are not scheduled during the first or last hour of such period of work.  No wage 

deduction shall be made nor time off charged against employees taking authorized rest 

periods nor shall any rights to overtime be accrued for rest periods not taken.  There is no 

obligation upon the Housing Authority to provide facilities for refreshments during the rest 

periods or for procurement thereof. 

 

E. CONVERSION OF WORK WEEK FROM 37.5 TO 40.0 HOURS.  Employees in 

classification converting to a forty (40)-hour week shall carry over their vacation and sick 

leave balance in the same number of days and fractions of days recorded for the thirty-seven 

point five (37.5)-hour work week. 

 

F. VOLUNTARY REDUCTION OF WORK PERIOD.  Upon mutual agreement of a full-

time permanent employee covered by this Memorandum of Understanding and the Executive 

Director or his/her designee, any such employee may elect to reduce work hours with an equal 

reduction in pay and paid benefits for periods of up to thirteen (13) pay periods as follows: 

 

1. An employee and the Executive Director or his/her designee may agree that the 

employee shall work a part-time work schedule of 90%, 80%, 70%, 60%, or 50% in 

any bi-weekly pay period with a corresponding reduction in pay and paid benefits as 

set forth in Paragraph 4. 

 

2. Employees working an approved reduced work schedule shall revert to full-time work 

status at the end of the agreed-to-period or if the employee transfers, promotes, 

demotes, terminates, or in any other way changes his/her status with the Housing 

Authority he/she shall be removed from the reduced work schedule. 

 

3. With ten (10) calendar days advance notice, the Executive Director or his/her designee 

may unilaterally terminate an approved reduced work schedule in the event of an 

unanticipated staffing or fiscal emergency.  The determination to terminate the 

approved reduction shall be final and non-grievable. 

 

4. Employees opting to reduce hours under this Section shall be deemed full-time 

employees for all purposes of this Memorandum of Understanding, including dental 

coverage pursuant to Section 14., except that such employees shall be entitled to paid 

leave accruals and health plan contributions on a prorated basis during such periods. 

 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  5-1.

ATTACHMENT A



 

HACA – SEIU 1021 MOU 
June 1565, 20175 – June 145, 20187 

12 

G. LUNCH PERIODS.  Employees shall be entitled to an uninterrupted meal period of thirty 

(30) minutes, or forty-five (45) minutes depending on the daily schedule, which shall be 

scheduled by their unit supervisor at approximately the mid-point of the workday. 

 

 80-hour/pay period employees shall take lunch from 12:00-12:30 on Friday of the first week 

of the pay period. 

 

H.  ALTERNATIVE WORK SCHEDULES.  The Housing Authority acknowledges that it has 

 never had nor expects to have evening work, night work, weekend work, split shifts, or 

 standby duty.  Should the occasion arise where this assignment is necessary, the Housing 

 Authority agrees to follow whatever administrative practices (including pay premiums) that 

 are in effect covering such situations for SEIU represented employees employed by the 

 County of Alameda. 

 

I. BI-WEEKLY OFFICE CLOSURE. 

 

1. Daily work schedule as follows: 

 

 75-hour/pay period employees shall work 8:00 a.m. to 5:05 p.m. with a forty-five (45) 

minute lunch for nine (9) days = seventy-five (75) hours. The official work week for 

overtime purposes for 75-hour employees would begin at 12:00 a.m. on Friday until 

the subsequent Friday at 12:00 a.m. 

 80-hour/pay period employee shall work 8:00 a.m. to 5:30 p.m. with forty-five (45) 

minute lunch for four (4) days = 35 hours, and 8:00 a.m. to 5:30 p.m. with  ½ hour 

lunch for five (5) days = forty-five (45) hours. The official work week for overtime 

purposes for 80-hour employees would begin at 12:00 a.m. on Friday until the 

subsequent Friday at 12:00 a.m. 

 

2. Office Closed on Alternate Fridays. Payday would become the second Thursday in the 

pay period for submitting time sheets and collecting paychecks. 

 

3. When a Holiday Occurs on a Scheduled Work Day. The office will be closed and 

employees will receive holiday pay for the full day, so long as they meet the eligibility 

requirements contained in this contract. 

 

4. When a Holiday Occurs on a Friday in Which the Office is Closed.  Employees who are in 

full time paid status the scheduled workday before and the scheduled work day after will 

receive a Floating Holiday added to their balances with the next payroll submittal. 

 

5. Paid Leaves. Employees shall be entitled to use sick leave, vacation, and other paid or 

unpaid leave for the full 8.33 or 8.9 hours, whichever applies, of each scheduled work 

day, if otherwise eligible for said leaves. 

 

6. Managers are given discretion, in hardship situations, to allow some 75-hour employees a 

½ hour lunch schedule, allowing them to leave at 4:50 p.m. or to allow them to start at 

8:15 a.m. For the purpose of this section, hardship shall be defined as, but not limited to 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  5-1.

ATTACHMENT A



 

HACA – SEIU 1021 MOU 
June 1565, 20175 – June 145, 20187 

13 

child care requirements and length of commute. Requests for hardship schedules may be 

granted on a “first come, first serve basis,” with ties broken by seniority, as referenced in  

Memorandum of Understanding Section 10. Vacation I.1. Requests for hardship schedules 

shall not be unreasonably denied and will be reviewed each January. 

 

 

SECTION 7. OVERTIME 
 

A. REGULAR WORK SCHEDULE REQUIRED.  Each unit supervisor shall prepare a 

schedule designating the hours each employee in his/her department or office shall work on a 

weekly basis.  Work for the Housing Authority by an employee at times beyond the work 

week so scheduled shall be approved in advance by the Executive Director or, in cases of 

unanticipated emergency, shall be approved by the Executive Director and entered into 

department records. 

 

B. HOW OVERTIME IS AUTHORIZED.  No employee shall work overtime unless written 

authorization for overtime pay has been given by the Executive Director or his/her authorized 

representative in accordance with Section 7.A. herein. 

 

C. OVERTIME WORK DEFINED.  Overtime work shall be defined as all work performed in 

a work week pursuant to subparagraphs A. and B. of this Section in excess of the work week 

set forth in Section 6.B.2. of this Memorandum of Understanding.  Holidays and paid time off 

shall count toward the accumulation of the work week. 

 

D. OVERTIME PAYMENT.  Except as provided in the Flextime Guidelines, all overtime work 

shall be compensated as follows: 

 

Employees in the Salary Schedule  attached to this Memorandum of Understanding shall be 

compensated for all time worked in excess of thirty-seven point thirty-two (37.32) or thirty-

seven point sixty-eight (37.68) hours in a week and less than forty (40) hours in a week at 

straight time plus compensatory time off at the rate of one-half (½) times the number of hours 

or fractions of hours worked and shall be compensated at one and one-half (1½) times the 

regular rate for work after forty (40) hours in a week, provided that employees shown to be on 

a forty (40)-hour work week and shall be compensated at one and one-half (1½) times the 

regular rate for work after forty (40) hours in a week. 

 

E. REGULAR RATE DEFINED.  For purposes of this Section, regular rate shall be defined as 

the total compensation during the work week as defined by the Department of Labor's 

regulations relating to the Fair Labor Standards Act divided by the total number of hours 

worked that week.  This amount shall be no less than the hourly rate calculated by dividing 

the employee's bi-weekly salary as defined in  the Salary Schedule by the number of hours in 

the employee's regular bi-weekly schedule as defined in  the Salary Schedule. 

 

F. WHEN OVERTIME SHALL BE PAID.  Compensation for overtime work shall be paid not 

later than the completion of the pay period next succeeding the pay period in which such 

overtime was earned. 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  5-1.

ATTACHMENT A



 

HACA – SEIU 1021 MOU 
June 1565, 20175 – June 145, 20187 

14 

 

G. WHEN COMPENSATING TIME OFF MAY BE TAKEN OR PAID FOR.  Accumulated 

compensating time off should be taken off within twenty-six (26) pay periods following the 

pay period in which it was earned.  Scheduling of compensating time off shall be by mutual 

agreement of the employee and the unit supervisor, provided that the unit supervisor may 

require that an employee adjust his/her work week in order to avoid overtime penalties and, 

provided further, that the Unit Supervisor shall schedule compensating time off for all 

accumulated compensating time off in excess of eighty (80) hours. 
 

Compensating time off due an employee must be granted to such employee prior to his/her 

separation, but not in an amount exceeding an aggregate of eighty (80) hours. 
 

An employee may  cash out compensating time off at anytime at  his/her current pay rate. 
 

The Housing Authority agrees to keep track of employee compensating time off earned and 

taken, by using the Housing Authority payroll system’s time sheet, leave slip and reporting 

capabilities, in lieu of keeping such information solely on the department level. 

 

 

SECTION 8. LEAVES OF ABSENCE 
 

A. LEAVE MAY NOT EXCEED SIX MONTHS.  A leave of absence without pay may be 

granted by the Executive Director upon the request of the employee seeking such leave, but 

such leave shall not be for longer than six (6) months, except as hereinafter provided. 

 

B. NO LEAVE TO ACCEPT OUTSIDE EMPLOYMENT.  A leave of absence without pay 

may not be granted to an employee  accepting either private or public employment outside the 

service of the Housing Authority, except as hereinafter provided. 

 

C. MILITARY LEAVE.  Every employee shall be entitled to military leave of absence as 

specified in Chapter 7, Part 1, Division 2 of the California Military and Veterans' Code.  For 

active duty service, an employee shall be eligible for up to thirty (30) calendar days of paid 

Military Leave, if he/she has been continuously employed for a period of one (1) year with the 

Housing Authority. Active service in the National Guard shall not require the previous year of 

service to be eligible for up to thirty (30) calendar days of paid Military Leave. 

 

Additionally, for training service, an employee shall be eligible for up to thirty (30) calendar 

days of paid leave if he/she has been continuously employed for a period of one (1) year with 

the Housing Authority and he/she has at least one (1) year of military service credit. 

 

Military leave shall be paid for scheduled workdays occurring during the thirty (30) calendar 

day period, including holidays as referenced in  Section 9.A herein. 

 

D. TEMPORARY APPOINTMENT DUE TO MILITARY LEAVE.  The Executive Director 

may grant an employee a leave of absence without pay from his/her position to permit such an 

employee to be temporarily appointed to fill a position which is vacant as the result and 

during the period of a military leave of absence. 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  5-1.

ATTACHMENT A



 

HACA – SEIU 1021 MOU 
June 1565, 20175 – June 145, 20187 

15 

E. EDUCATIONAL LEAVE.  A leave of absence without pay may be granted by the 

Executive Director upon the request of an employee seeking such leave for the purpose of 

education, but no one such leave of absence shall exceed a period of one (1) year. 

 

F. LEAVE WHEN LENT TO OTHER GOVERNMENTAL AGENCY OR 

GOVERNMENTAL INSTITUTION.  A leave of absence without pay may be granted by 

the Executive Director to any employee who is lent to another governmental jurisdiction, to 

an agency engaged in a survey of government practices, or to an educational institution; but 

no one such leave of absence shall exceed a period of one (1) year. 

 

G. LEAVE OF ABSENCE TO ACCEPT APPOINTMENT TO ANOTHER POSITION IN 

THE CLASSIFIED SERVICE.  An employee having tenure in a classification who is 

appointed to another classification of the Housing Authority may be granted a leave of 

absence without pay from the position to which he/she has tenure until he/she obtains tenure 

to such other position, or his/her appointment thereto is terminated for any reason, whichever 

first occurs.  In the event of the return of such employee to the position from which leave of 

absence was granted, the employee with the least total Authority service as defined in 

Personnel Rules  Article 24.1 in such class shall be laid off if all authorized positions are 

filled. 

 

H. LEAVE FOR JURY DUTY OR IN ANSWER TO SUBPOENA.  Sufficient paid leave 

shall be granted to permit an employee to travel between the work place and the court and 

while serving on jury duty or in answer to a subpoena as a witness arising out of the course of 

their Housing Authority employment.  Any jury or witness fee awarded to such person, less 

reimbursement for mileage, shall be deposited with the Housing Authority Finance  Director.  

When an employee is excused from jury duty or from answering a subpoena as a witness in 

time to report for at least one-half (½) his/her regularly scheduled work day, the employee 

shall report to duty; and jury duty pay under this Section shall be reduced accordingly.  If the 

employee fails to report as set forth herein, he/she shall be docked for the balance of the day.  

The employee shall apply for standby jury duty if the court permits this option. An employee 

whose work assignment precludes participation in the standby jury duty shall be exempted 

from this requirement, provided that the Executive Director or his/her designee may adjust an 

employee's work assignment to permit the employee to apply for standby duty. 

 

I. DISABILITY LEAVE FOR OTHER EMPLOYMENT.  Anything in this Memorandum of 

Understanding to the contrary notwithstanding, any person who because of sickness or injury 

is incapable of performing his/her work or duties in the service of the Housing Authority may, 

within the discretion of the Executive Director, be granted sick leave of absence without pay 

during such disability to accept such employment. 

 

J. PERSONAL DISABILITY LEAVE.  After six (6) months from date of employment, an 

employee shall be entitled to leaves of absence without pay for not more than two (2) periods 

aggregating to no more than ninety (90) calendar days within a twelve (12)-month period 

upon presentation of acceptable proof of his/her person disability.  Before such leave, the 

employee must have used all accrued vacation, paid sick leave, or compensating time off, 

unless the employee is receiving accrued vacation, paid sick leave, or compensating time off 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  5-1.

ATTACHMENT A



 

HACA – SEIU 1021 MOU 
June 1565, 20175 – June 145, 20187 

16 

as a supplement to disability insurance benefits under Section 22. of this Memorandum of 

Understanding; in which event, the employee shall be entitled to personal disability leave.  

But the employee's entitled personal disability leave shall be reduced by the hourly equivalent 

of the disability insurance payment (hours of personal disability deducted per pay period 

equals two (2) times the employee's weekly disability insurance entitlement divided by the 

employee's normal hourly rate) provided, however, that an employee who has exhausted paid 

leave balances and is receiving disability insurance only shall have personal disability leave 

deducted on a day-for-day basis.  Such leave may be extended by mutual agreement of the 

employee and the Housing Authority. 

 

The Housing Authority may require acceptable proof of the employee's ability to return to 

work provided that the Housing Authority shall notify the employee in writing of such 

requirement in advance.  If the submitted proof is deemed unacceptable, the Housing 

Authority shall immediately notify the employee in writing of existing deficiencies in the 

submitted proof. Employees granted leave under this Paragraph shall be returned to the same 

classification; the Housing Authority shall make its best effort to return such employee to the 

same geographical location, and where there is specialization within a classification, to the 

same specialization.  Questions as to whether or not the Housing Authority has used its best 

efforts herein shall not be subject to the grievance procedure. 

 

K. MATERNITY LEAVE.  A pregnant employee shall furnish  her unit supervisor a statement 

which indicates the estimated date of delivery.  A pregnant employee is entitled to a maternity 

leave of up to four (4) months, the dates of which are to be mutually agreed upon by the 

employee and the Housing Authority.  Such an employee may elect to take accrued vacation 

or compensating time off or sick leave during the period of maternity leave.   In the event an 

employee requests to return from maternity leave prior to the  previously agreed upon return 

date, the Housing Authority may require acceptable proof of the employee’s ability to return 

to work, provided that the Housing Authority shall notify the employee in writing of such 

requirement. The employee shall be entitled to sick leave with pay accumulated pursuant to 

Section 11.E. of this Memorandum of Understanding, and with the approval of the Executive 

Director, shall be entitled to sick leave with pay for which she is otherwise eligible pursuant 

to Section 11.F. of this Memorandum.  Reinstatement subsequent to maternity leave of 

absence shall be the same classification from which leave was taken, and the Housing 

Authority shall make its best effort to return such employee to the same specialization within 

a classification, if one exists.  Questions as to whether or not the Housing Authority has used 

its best effort herein shall not be subject to the grievance procedure. 

 

L. DEATH IN IMMEDIATE FAMILY.  Leave of absence with pay because of death in the 

immediate family of an employee in the Housing Authority service may be granted by the 

Executive Director for a period not to exceed three (3) days.  An additional three (3) days 

leave may be granted by the Executive Director and charged to the employee's accrued sick 

leave balance. 

 

 Entitlement to leave of absence under this Section, insofar as the first three (3) days are 

concerned, shall be in addition to any other entitlement for sick leave, emergency leave, or 

any other leave.  For purposes of this Section "immediate family" means mother, stepmother, 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  5-1.

ATTACHMENT A



 

HACA – SEIU 1021 MOU 
June 1565, 20175 – June 145, 20187 

17 

father, stepfather, husband, wife, domestic partner (as defined in Addendum A), son, stepson, 

daughter, stepdaughter, brother, sister, foster parent, foster child, grandchild, grandparent, or 

any other person sharing the relationship of in loco parentis; and when living in the household 

of the employee, a brother-in-law, sister-in-law, mother-in-law, or father-in-law. 

 

 In the case of the death of the employee's mother-in-law or father-in-law, where the decedent 

was not living in the employee's household, the employee shall be entitled to two (2) days of 

paid leave of absence. 

 

M. LEAVE FOR PARTICIPATION IN EXAMINATION PROCESS.  Upon forty-eight (48) 

hours advance notice by the employee to his/her supervisor, an employee shall be granted 

paid leave while participating in an Alameda County Housing Authority examination which is 

scheduled during the employee's working hours.  Sufficient paid leave shall be granted to 

permit the employee to travel between the work place and the testing site. 

 

N. LEAVE FOR PARTICIPATING IN SELECTION PROCESS.  Upon twenty-four (24) 

hours advance notice by the employee to his/her supervisor, an employee who has received a 

certification for an Alameda County Housing Authority employment interview shall be 

granted paid leave while participating in the interview scheduled during the employee's 

working hours.  Sufficient paid leave shall be granted to permit the employee to travel 

between the work place and the site of the interview.  Interviews for jurisdictions other than 

the Alameda County Housing Authority are exempted from this position. 

 

O. LEAVE FOR EMPLOYMENT WITH THE UNION.  Upon written notification from the 

Union and the agreement of the Housing Authority, one employee shall be granted a leave of 

absence without pay for a period of up to three (3) months in a (12) twelve month period to 

work for SEIU Local 1021. 

 

The Housing Authority shall make its best effort to return employees granted leave under this 

paragraph to their same position upon completion of this leave.  Questions as to whether or 

not the Housing Authority has used its best efforts herein shall not be subject to the grievance 

procedure. 

 

 

SECTION 9. HOLIDAYS 
 

A. HOLIDAYS DEFINED.  Paid holidays shall be: 

 

January 1 - New Year's Day 

Third Monday in January - Dr. Martin Luther King’s Birthday 

February 12 - Lincoln's Birthday 

Third Monday in February - Washington's Birthday 

March 31 – Cesar Chavez’s Birthday 

Last Monday in May - Memorial Day 

July 4 - Independence Day 

First Monday in September - Labor Day 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  5-1.

ATTACHMENT A



 

HACA – SEIU 1021 MOU 
June 1565, 20175 – June 145, 20187 

18 

September 9 - Admission Day 

Second Monday in October - Columbus Day 

November 11 - Veterans' Day 

Fourth Thursday in November - Thanksgiving Day/Day after Thanksgiving Day 

December 25 - Christmas Day 

 

All other days appointed by the President of the United States or the Governor of the State of 

California for a public fast, national day of mourning, thanksgiving, or holiday, and approved 

by a majority of the members of the Housing Commission. 
 

In the event such a day is appointed by the President or the Governor, the Executive Director 

his/her designee shall make his/her best effort to contact the members of the Housing 

Commission in a timely fashion and to seek their determination of the applicability of the 

holiday.  If time permits, the question of the applicability of the holiday shall be scheduled for 

consideration by the Commission at its next regular meeting. 
 

When a holiday occurs on a Friday in which the office is closed, employees who are in a full- 

time paid status, the scheduled workday before and the scheduled work day after will receive 

a Floating Holiday added to their balances with the next payroll submittal. 

 

Floating Holidays are valued at 8.33 hours of paid leave per holiday for all employees, except 

that those employees who work in classifications requiring an eighty (80)-hour per pay period 

schedule as indicated in the salary schedules within this MOU shall have their Floating 

Holidays valued at 8.9 hours of paid leave per holiday.  

 

Two Floating Holidays are to be scheduled by mutual agreement of the employee and his/her 

supervisor and taken within the fiscal year, except that employees who have completed 

fourteen (14) years of Housing Authority service shall receive four Floating Holidays each 

year, until they reach eighteen (18) years of service, at which time they shall revert to two 

Floating Holidays each year. 
 

Employees hired on or after April 1 of any fiscal year are not eligible to receive the Floating 

Holiday in that fiscal year. 
 
 

B. HOLIDAYS TO BE OBSERVED ON WORK DAYS.  In the event that January 1, 

February 12 (known as Lincoln's Birthday), March 31 (known as Cesar Chavez’s Birthday), 

July 4, September 9 (known as Admission Day), November 11 (known as Veterans' Day), or 

December 25 shall fall on a Saturday, said holiday shall be observed on the preceding Friday. 

 

In the event that any of said holidays enumerated in this subparagraph B. shall fall on a 

Sunday, said holiday shall be observed on the following Monday.  A day proclaimed a day of 

national mourning or celebration shall be granted only to those employees who are regularly 

scheduled to work on the day for which such holiday is proclaimed. 

 

In the event that a holiday occurs on an employees scheduled work day, the hours of said 

holiday pay for each employee shall be the same as the hours in that work day schedule for 

each employee. 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  5-1.

ATTACHMENT A



 

HACA – SEIU 1021 MOU 
June 1565, 20175 – June 145, 20187 

19 

C. HOLIDAY COMPENSATION.  Holidays not worked shall be compensated at straight time. 

In the event any employee shall work longer than the normal work week as set forth in 

Section 6.B. or when applicable Section 6.F.1. of this Memorandum of Understanding by 

virtue of having worked the holiday, such employee shall be compensated at straight time in 

cash and time-and-one-half off in compensatory time for such hours worked.   Time off in lieu 

of a holiday shall be scheduled by mutual agreement of the employee and the Housing 

Authority within twenty-six (26) pay periods. 

 

D. ELIGIBILITY FOR HOLIDAY PAY.  Except as provided in Section 9.A.  To be eligible 

for holiday pay, except pay for a Floating Holiday, an employee must be on at least one-half 

(½) day’s paid status the scheduled work day before and the scheduled work day after the 

holiday. 

 

E. CONFORMITY WITH STATE HOLIDAYS.  In the event the Legislature shall amend 

Section 6700 of the Government Code to change the date a holiday listed in Paragraph A. 

hereof is observed, employees subject to this Memorandum of Understanding shall celebrate 

said holiday in conformity with the State.  This Paragraph shall not be applied so as to 

increase or decrease the number of holidays set forth in Paragraph A. hereof. 

 

F. EXEMPT WORK SITUATIONS.  Time spent in study courses, seminars, and meetings of 

professional groups is exempt from the provisions of this Section. 

 

 

SECTION 10. VACATION LEAVE 
 
 
A. ACCUMULATION OF VACATION LEAVE.  Each person in the service of the Housing 

Authority shall accrue vacation leave as follows: 

 

1. 2.89 hours for 75-hour/pay period employees, and 3.08 for 80-hour/pay period employees, 

for each full-time bi-weekly pay period on paid status until completion of seventy-eight 

(78) full-time bi-weekly pay periods (three (3) years) of continuous employment. 
 

2. 4.33 hours for 75-hour/pay period employees, and 4.62 for 80-hour/pay period employees, 

for each full-time bi-weekly pay period on paid status after completion of seventy-eight 

(78) full-time bi-weekly pay periods (three (3) years) of continuous employment and until 

completion of two-hundred and sixty (260) full-time bi-weekly pay periods (ten (10) 

years) of continuous employment. 
 

3. 5.77 hours for 75-hour/pay period employees, and 6.15 for 80-hour/pay period employees, 

for each full-time bi-weekly pay period on paid status after completion of two-hundred 

and sixty (260) full-time bi-weekly pay periods (ten (10) years) of continuous 

employment. 

 

4. 7.22 hours for 75-hour/pay period employees, and 7.69 for 80-hour/pay period employees, 

for each full time bi-weekly pay period on paid status after completion of four-hundred 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  5-1.

ATTACHMENT A



 

HACA – SEIU 1021 MOU 
June 1565, 20175 – June 145, 20187 

20 

and sixty-eight (468) full time bi-weekly pay periods (eighteen (18) years) of continuous 

employment. 

 

5. Effective June 11, 2000, employees attaining a vacation balance of two (2) times their 

annual accrual, shall cease accruing vacation until their balances drop below said limit. 

 

B. CASH PAYMENT IN LIEU OF VACATION LEAVE.  An employee who leaves the 

Housing Authority service for any reason shall be paid at the rate shown in subparagraphs A. 

and B. of this Section for unused vacation accrued to the date of his/her separation, provided 

that no employee may receive vacation payoffs exceeding what he/she earned during the last 

two years before leaving Housing Authority service. 

 

Employees shall have the primary responsibility to schedule and take sufficient vacation leave 

to reduce their accrued vacation leave balances to levels which do not exceed the amount for 

which they can receive cash payment hereunder upon termination.  Unit supervisors shall 

make reasonable effort to accommodate written vacation leave requests submitted by 

employees which state that the purpose of such requests is to reduce accrued vacation leave 

balances to the level which can be paid for in cash upon termination. 

 

C. DATE WHEN VACATION CREDIT STARTS.  Vacation credit shall begin on the first 

day of employment. 

 

D. WHEN FIRST VACATION IS DUE.  The first vacation leave for any employee shall be 

due only after the completion of at least one-hundred and thirty (130) working days or thirteen 

(13) pay periods of employment, except as provided in subparagraph J. hereof. 

 

E. MAXIMUM VACATION LEAVE.  An employee shall be allowed to take one and one-half 

(1½) times his/her annual vacation accrual during any calendar year, provided that he/she has 

accumulated sufficient unused vacation leave.  An employee, with the permission of the 

Executive Director, may take vacation in excess of one and one-half (1½) times his/her 

annual vacation accrual during any calendar year, if he/she has accumulated sufficient unused 

vacation leave. 

 

F. DEFINITION.  For the purpose of this Section, "working day" shall mean any day upon 

which an employee would normally be required to work. 

 

G. EFFECT OF LEAVE WITHOUT PAY ON VACATION CREDIT.  No vacation credit 

shall be earned during the period when an employee is absent on leave without pay. 

 

H. EFFECT OF ABSENCE ON CONTINUOUS SERVICE.  Absence on authorized leave 

with or without pay and time during which an employee is temporarily not employed by the 

Authority, if followed by re-employment within one (1) year, shall not be considered as an 

interruption of continuous service for the purpose of this Section.  Time during which an 

employee is laid off because his/her services are not needed, if followed by re-employment 

within three (3) years, shall not be considered as an interruption of continuous service for the 

purpose of this Section. 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  5-1.

ATTACHMENT A



 

HACA – SEIU 1021 MOU 
June 1565, 20175 – June 145, 20187 

21 

The period of time such employee is absent on authorized leave without pay, or temporarily 

not employed, or laid-off shall not be counted in computing such weeks of continuous 

employment for the purpose of this Section, provided that for the purposes of qualifying for 

the point seven-hundred and sixty-nine (.769) working days rate of vacation leave, where a 

person has been employed by the Authority without interruption for the past five-hundred and 

twenty-one (521) weeks, all service of such employee shall be deemed to have been 

continuous.   

 

I. WHEN VACATION LEAVE MAY BE TAKEN. 

 

1. Except as provided in Paragraph 2. hereof, vacation shall be scheduled by mutual 

agreement of the employee and the Executive Director or his/her designee.  In the 

event of conflicting requests from the employees, the matter shall be decided in favor 

of the employee having the longest Housing Authority service in a classification 

within a vacation-scheduling unit. 
 

In the event of a tie in Housing Authority service in a classification within a 

scheduling unit the following applies in this order: 

 

(a)  Employee with longest total service in the scheduling unit (less LWOP) 

(b)  Employee with longest service in the classification (less LWOP) 

(c)  Employee with longest Housing Authority service (less LWOP) 
 

Subsequent vacation requests within the same calendar year shall be resolved in favor 

of the most senior employee who has not by virtue of his/her senior position 

previously had such a conflict resolved in his/her favor during the calendar year.  In 

the event of vacation schedule conflict among employees, all of whom have by virtue 

of their senior position had such conflicts resolved in their favor during the calendar 

year, the senior employee who has had the least number of conflicts resolved in his/her 

favor shall prevail.  When written submission of a vacation request is required 

pursuant to this Paragraph 1., the Housing Authority shall respond within thirty (30) 

calendar days in writing or shall schedule the vacation requested by the employee. 

 

The employee’s seniority for vacation seniority purposes begins once he/she enters a 

vacation scheduling unit within his/her classification.  Should an employee change 

his/her scheduled unit and/or classification, the seniority accrual for vacation purposes 

starts over.  Promotion within a flexibly staffed position for purposes of vacation 

seniority will not be considered a change in classification. 

 

2. In the event that vacation scheduling pursuant to Paragraph 1. hereof is impractical 

due to the size of the department vacation-scheduling unit involved or other reasons, 

the following procedures shall apply: 

 

In a month established by the Executive Director, any employee may submit up to 

three (3) choices of preferred vacation period for the subsequent twelve (12) months.  

The department shall approve such choices on the basis of employee seniority as set 

forth in Paragraph 1. hereof.  The department shall post a list of approved and 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  5-1.

ATTACHMENT A



 

HACA – SEIU 1021 MOU 
June 1565, 20175 – June 145, 20187 

22 

scheduled vacations no later than six (6) weeks following the end of the designated 

month in which the vacation requests were due.  Any employee who fails to submit a 

choice or choices or any new employee who misses the sign-up period for the 

department shall schedule vacations by mutual agreement pursuant to Paragraph 1. 

hereof.  The department shall post a list of approved and scheduled vacations no later 

than six (6) weeks following the end of the designated month in which the vacation 

requests were due.  Any employee who fails to submit a choice or choices or any new 

employee who misses the sign-up period for the department shall schedule vacations 

by mutual agreement pursuant to Paragraph 1. hereof, provided that such vacation 

scheduling by mutual agreement shall not supersede any vacation scheduled by 

submission. 

 

In the administration of this Paragraph 2., the Executive Director shall post seniority 

lists, lists of the number of employees by classification allowed to be on vacation at 

one time or for any period, and blank calendars or other means which shall make it 

possible for employees to submit their three (3) choices and to determine which 

employees have applied for which vacation periods. 

 

An employee shall be allowed to divide his/her vacation leave in any calendar year 

into two (2) segments.  The Executive Director, at his/her discretion, may grant an 

employee additional segments of vacation. These segments are to be in addition to any 

segments of vacation leave used as personal leave as defined in Section 10.J. 

 

J. PERSONAL LEAVE.  An employee shall be allowed  three (3) days in any calendar year 

from his/her regular vacation allowance for personal leave.  The  employee’s supervisor shall 

not deny a request for this leave except for reasons critical to the operation of the Housing 

Authority.  Employees shall be allowed to use personal leave in increments of less than one 

(1) hour.   

 

K. RATE OF VACATION PAY.  Compensation during vacation shall be at the rate of 

compensation which such person would have been entitled to receive, including premium pay, 

if in active service during such vacation period. 

 

L.     VACATION SELL BACK.  Employees are eligible to sell back vacation subject to the 

following conditions: 

 

1. Employees can sell back a maximum of  seventy-five (75) or eighty (80) vacation 

hours depending upon classification, as indicated in the Salary Schedule , each time 

the employee exercises the cash-out option for a maximum of two-hundred and 

twenty-five (225) hours or two-hundred and forty (240) hours per fiscal year. 

 

2. Employees can exercise this option a maximum of three (3) times per fiscal year. 

 

3. Employees must have thirty-seven point five (37.5) or forty (40) vacation hours 

accrued depending upon classification, as indicated in the Salary Schedule  remaining 

after the sell back. 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  5-1.

ATTACHMENT A



 

HACA – SEIU 1021 MOU 
June 1565, 20175 – June 145, 20187 

23 

 

4. Employees at the maximum accrual balance of two times their annual vacation accrual 

shall receive floating holidays in lieu of vacation time for the Reward of Non Usage of 

Sick Leave contained in the Housing Authority Personnel Rules Articles 19.14 and 

19.15. 

 

M. VACATION PURCHASE PLAN.  During the first full pay period in the month of September, 

employees may elect, by submitting a written request, to the Executive Director or his/her designee, 

to purchase forty (40) hours of vacation leave. The Housing Authority shall then pay the employee, 

two hours less pay on each paycheck for twenty (20) pay periods, after which the employee shall 

be credited with the forty (40) hours of vacation leave. The vacation, once credited, may be taken 

with the employee's regular vacation entitlement. 

 

1. Employees may not elect to purchase vacation if their vacation balance at the time of 

election exceeds fifty (50) hours. 

 
2. Once employees elect to purchase vacation as indicated herein, they may not rescind 

their election. 
 
3. Should employees receive a pay increase/decrease during the vacation purchase 

period, the effect will be that employees will receive credit for the actual value of the 

time purchased at the end of the twenty (20) pay periods, which could be more or less 

than forty (40) hours. 

 

4. Employees will not have use of the purchased vacation until the end of the twenty (20)-

pay period vacation purchase period. 

 

5. Employees who leave authority service during the vacation purchase period shall receive 

the cash equivalent of the vacation they have purchased at the time they leave employment. 

 

6. When taking vacation leave, employees must first exhaust their purchased vacation 

balances before taking accrued vacation leave. 

 

 

SECTION 11. SICK LEAVE 
 

A. SICK LEAVE DEFINED.  As used in this Section, "Sick Leave" means leave of absence of 

an employee because of any of the following: 1) illness or injury which renders him/her 

incapable of performing his/her work or duties for the Housing Authority; 2) his/her exposure 

to contagious disease; and 3) routine medical or dental appointments of the employee. 

 

B. EMPLOYEE DEFINED.  As used in this Section, "Employee" means any person holding a 

regular, provisional, or temporary appointment in the Housing Authority service and working 

full-time and otherwise subject to the provisions of the Memorandum of Understanding. 

 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  5-1.

ATTACHMENT A



 

HACA – SEIU 1021 MOU 
June 1565, 20175 – June 145, 20187 

24 

C. SELF-INFLICTED INJURY EXCLUDED.  In no case shall an absence due to 

purposefully self-inflicted incapacity or injury be deemed a basis for granting either sick leave 

or sick leave with pay under the provisions of this Section. 

 

D. INDUSTRIAL SICK LEAVE SUPPLEMENT. If an employee is incapacitated by sickness 

or injury received in the course of his/her employment by the Housing Authority, such 

employee shall be entitled to pay as provided herein. 

 

1. AMOUNT AND DURATION OF PAYMENT.  Such employee shall be entitled to 

receive supplemental industrial sick leave with pay for scheduled work days, 

commencing with the fourth (4
th

) calendar day of such incapacity, equal to the 

difference between eighty percent (80%) of his/her normal salary and the amount of 

any Workers' Compensation temporary disability payments to which such employee is 

entitled during such incapacity, but not for a period exceeding nine (9) months from 

the date of sickness or injury resulting in such incapacity. 

 

Following nine (9) months, cumulative sick leave may be granted to supplement 

temporary disability payments to provide the disabled employee a total of eighty 

percent (80%) of salary (the amount of sick leave necessary for this purpose is 

computed in each case by the Housing Authority Payroll Department). 

 

In the event that the period of such incapacity shall exceed fourteen (14) calendar 

days, the employee so incapacitated may be granted supplemental industrial sick leave 

with pay at the rate of one-hundred percent (100%) of his/her normal salary for the 

first three (3) scheduled workdays of such incapacity.  If the period of such incapacity 

shall not exceed fourteen (14) calendar days, the employee so incapacitated will be 

eligible to receive cumulative sick leave pay or any other accrued paid leave for 

scheduled work days, as provided in subsection E. hereof, for the first three (3) 

calendar days of such disability. 

 

2. WHEN PAYMENTS SHALL BE DENIED.  Notwithstanding the foregoing 

provisions of this Section, however, such payments shall not be made pursuant to this 

Subsection D. to an employee: 

 

(a) who does not apply for or who does not receive temporary disability benefits 

under the workers’ compensation laws; 

(b) whose injury or illness has become permanent; 

(c) whose injury or illness, although continuing to show improvement, is unlikely 

to improve sufficiently to permit the employee to return to work in his/her 

position; 

(d) who is retired on permanent disability or pension; 

(e) who unreasonably refuses to accept other Housing Authority employment for 

which he/she is not substantially disabled; 

(f) whose injury or illness is the result of failure to observe Housing Authority 

health or safety regulations or the commission of a criminal offense; 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  5-1.

ATTACHMENT A



 

HACA – SEIU 1021 MOU 
June 1565, 20175 – June 145, 20187 

25 

(g) whose injury or illness has been aggravated or delayed in healing by reason of 

the failure of the employee to have received medical treatment or to have 

followed medical advice, except where such treatment or advice has not been 

sought or followed by reason of the religious beliefs of the employee; and 

(h) whose injury or illness is a recurrence or re-injury of an earlier job-related 

injury or illness, or is contributed to by a susceptibility or predisposition to 

such injury or illness related to an earlier job-related injury or illness. 

 

3. FRINGE BENEFIT ENTITLEMENT DURING INDUSTRIAL INJURY 

LEAVE.  Employees receiving industrial sick leave with pay shall maintain and 

accrue all benefits to which they are entitled under this Memorandum of 

Understanding at one-hundred percent (100%) of their regular schedule immediately 

preceding an industrial injury or illness. 

 

E. CUMULATIVE SICK LEAVE PLAN.  Each employee shall accumulate sick leave with 

pay entitlement at the rate of 3.75 or 4.0 hours depending upon classification, as indicated in  

the attached Salary Schedule, for each full bi-weekly pay period on paid status up to a 

maximum accumulation of nine-hundred thirty-seven point five (937.5) or one-thousand 

(1,000) hours, depending upon classification as indicated in the  Salary Schedule, of unused 

sick leave with pay entitlement.  The unit supervisor shall grant to such an employee, for 

those causes set forth in Paragraph A. hereof, sick leave with pay, but not in excess of his/her 

accumulated unused sick leave with pay entitlement.  When an employee reaches the 

maximum accumulation of nine-hundred thirty-seven point five (937.5) or one-thousand 

(1,000) hours, depending upon classification as indicated in the  Salary Schedule, of sick 

leave with pay, he/she shall have this total reduced to nine-hundred and seven point five 

(907.5) hours or nine-hundred sixty-eight (968) hours of sick leave, depending upon 

classification as indicated in the  Salary Schedule, with pay and be granted an additional  

16.66 hours or  17.80 hours of vacation, depending upon classification as indicated in the  

Salary Schedule. 

 

F.   MEDICAL REPORT.  The Executive Director, as a condition of granting sick leave with 

pay, may require medical evidence of sickness or injury acceptable to the Housing Authority. 

 

G. KIN CARE.  An employee shall be entitled to up to sixty (60) hours per calendar year of 

accrued paid sick leave to attend to the illness of his/her child, grandchild, parent, spouse or 

(registered) domestic partner (see Addendum A).  For the purpose of this section, “child” 

shall include biological, foster, adopted, stepchild, legal ward, child of a (registered) domestic 

partner or a child of a person standing in loco parentis.  For the purpose of this section, parent 

shall include biological, foster, adoptive, stepparent or legal guardian.  To qualify for leave 

under this section the absence must be consistent with the uses of sick leave in Section 11.A. 

herein. 

 

H. CATASTROPHIC SICK LEAVE PROGRAM.  Effective June 23, 1991, an employee may 

be eligible to receive donations of paid leave to be included in the employee's sick leave 

balance if he/she, his/her spouse, his/her child or his/her domestic partner has suffered a 

catastrophic illness or injury which prevents the employee from being able to work.  

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  5-1.

ATTACHMENT A



 

HACA – SEIU 1021 MOU 
June 1565, 20175 – June 145, 20187 

26 

Catastrophic illness or injury is defined as a critical medical condition considered to be 

terminal, a long-term major physical impairment or disability. 

 

Eligibility: 

 

1. The tenured recipient employee, recipient employee's family, or other person designated 

in writing by the recipient employee must submit a request to the Personnel Officer. 

 

2. The recipient employee is not eligible so long as he/she has paid leave(s) available, 

however, the request may be initiated prior to the anticipated date leave balances will be 

exhausted.  The Housing Authority will make a good faith effort to notify employees who 

are on extended sick leave when it becomes apparent that their leave balances may soon 

be exhausted.  Failure to notify the employee creates no liability on the part of the 

Housing Authority for losses the employee may incur. 

 

3. A medical verification including diagnosis and prognosis must be provided by the 

recipient employee. 

 

4. A recipient employee is eligible to receive six-hundred and seventy-five (675) hours or 

seven-hundred and twenty (720) hours depending upon classification, as indicated in 

Appendix A, of donated time per employment. 

 

5. Donations shall be made in increments of  4.16 or  4.44 hours, at a minimum (depending 

on classification) and are irrevocable.  The maximum that may be donated in a calendar 

year is  six (6) donor employee’s days per recipient. 

 

6. The donor employee may donate sick leave (up to  16.66 or  17.80 hours depending on 

classification), so long as two-hundred and fifty (250) hours of sick leave are maintained 

in an employee’s accrued sick leave balance after the donation), vacation, compensatory 

time or in lieu holiday time which shall be converted to recipient employee’s sick leave 

balance and all sick leave provisions will apply.  Time donated in any pay period may be 

used in the following periods.  No retroactive donations will be permitted. 

 

7. The donor’s hourly value will be converted to the recipient’s hourly value and then added 

to the recipient’s sick leave balance on a dollar-for-dollar basis. 

 

8. The recipient employee’s entitlement to personal disability leave will be reduced by the 

number of hours added to the recipient’s sick leave balance. 

 

9. The determination of the employee’s eligibility for catastrophic sick leave donation shall 

be at the Housing Authority’s sole discretion and shall be final and non-grievable. 

 

10. The Housing Authority shall notify the union when an employee has been approved for 

this program.  The Union may notify its members of the employee’s eligibility. 

 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  5-1.

ATTACHMENT A



 

HACA – SEIU 1021 MOU 
June 1565, 20175 – June 145, 20187 

27 

I. SICK LEAVE CREDIT AT RETIREMENT.  Housing Authority employees who are 

members of the Alameda County Employees’ Retirement System and who retire, shall be 

credited for fifty percent (50%)  of their unused paid sick leave accumulated as of the date of 

their retirement, up to a maximum credit of sixty (60) days. 

 

J. FAMILY/MEDICAL LEAVE.  Employees might be eligible for leave under the Family and 

Medical Leave Act (FMLA), the California Family Rights Act (CFRA) and/or the Pregnancy 

Disability Act (PDA).  Employees may review Authority policy and/or inquire with Human 

Resources for details. 

 

 

SECTION 12. WAGES 
 

A. A $3,500.002,000.00 one-time lump sum payment will be made to all bargaining unit 

members in paid status to be paid no later than May 5, 2016September 21, 2017.   

 

B. Step increases shall be awarded in accordance with Article 3.2.1. of the Personnel Rules. 

 

C. A  five percent (5%) cost of living adjustment will be implemented effective  with pay 

 period 16-14 which corresponds to the pay date of July 14, 2016.    

 

DC. The Authority agrees to freeze an Administrative Clerk position for the duration of this 

 Memorandum of Understanding. 

 

 

SECTION 13. PREMIUM CONDITIONS 
 

A. FOR CALL-BACK.  An employee called back to work shall be compensated at the premium 

overtime rate for such work, provided, however, that the minimum compensation shall be two 

(2) hours at the overtime rate. 

 

B. FOR TEMPORARY ASSIGNMENT TO A HIGHER LEVEL VACANCY.  An 

employee specifically assigned on a temporary basis to a higher level position in which there 

is no appointed incumbent or in which the appointed incumbent is on paid or unpaid leave 

shall be compensated at the pay rate for the higher level position if the service in such position 

exceeds ten (10) days in any twelve (12)-month period, which payment shall be retroactive to 

the first day of such services; provided, however, that the full range of duties of the higher 

level position has been specifically assigned in writing by the Executive Director or his/her 

designee.  For the purpose of this Section, the pay rate for the higher level position shall be 

calculated as if the employee had been promoted to such position pursuant to  Article 3.7 of 

the Personnel Rules. 

 

C. REPORTING PAY.  In the event that a regular full-time employee is scheduled or directed 

to report for work and so reports and is told by the Housing Authority that his/her services are 

not required, he/she will be entitled to two (2) hours pay at the straight time rate.  If such 

employee is sent home through no fault of his/her own before completion of his/her workday, 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  5-1.

ATTACHMENT A



 

HACA – SEIU 1021 MOU 
June 1565, 20175 – June 145, 20187 

28 

such employee will be entitled to a minimum of four (4) hours of pay at the straight time rate 

or straight time pay for hours actually worked, whichever is greater. 

 

D. BILINGUAL PAY.  Upon the recommendation of the department manager and the approval 

of the Executive Director, an employee occupying a position designated as requiring fluency 

in a language other than English shall receive fifty dollars ($50.00) per pay period.  If the 

County of Alameda raises this benefit for SEIU represented employees above what the 

Housing Authority pays during the term of this Memorandum of Understanding, Housing 

Authority bilingual employees will receive the same bilingual compensation. 

 

 

SECTION 14. HEALTH PLANS 
 

A. From the date of adoption of this Agreement and to the end of the term of this Agreement on 

June 15, 2017, the Housing Authority shall contribute 96% toward the monthly premium 

amount for the Kaiser Health Service Plan for all eligible employees and their dependents.  

Employees shall pay any difference between the Housing Authority contribution and the full 

amount of the premium of the plan and benefit level. 

 

B. For the contract period of this Memorandum of Understanding, the Housing Authority shall 

contribute toward the monthly provider’s charge for a dental plan for all eligible employees 

and their dependents an amount equal to and for a plan equal to that paid for by the County of 

Alameda for SEIU Local 1021 represented employees. 

 

C. Effective June 18, 2006, employees shall be eligible for vision care reimbursement subject to 

the following criteria: 
 

1. The employee is eligible for reimbursement after six (6) months of continuous 

employment working at least fifty percent (50%) time or more each pay period. 

 

2. The employee shall be reimbursed for the cost of lenses and frames or contact lenses 

specifically prescribed for the employee, spouse, registered domestic partner with the 

State of California, or dependent children, up to a maximum reimbursement of two-

hundred seventy-five dollars ($275.00) every eighteen (18) months, and effective June 

11, 2010, to a maximum reimbursement of three-hundred dollars ($300.00) every 

eighteen (18) months.  Such reimbursement shall be made in accordance with IRS 

regulations. 
 

D. Effective June 15, 2008, employees may receive one-hundred dollars ($100.00) per pay 

period, if they elect the option to forego health coverage.  The election must be submitted in 

writing during the open enrollment period and is non-revocable.  New employees may choose 

this option during the first thirty (30) days of employment. 

 

E. Effective January 1, 2012, employees shall have the ability to participate in a Flexible 

Spending Account for purposes of paying on a pre-tax basis for those expenses allowed 

pursuant to Section 125 of the Internal Revenue Code. 

 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  5-1.

ATTACHMENT A



 

HACA – SEIU 1021 MOU 
June 1565, 20175 – June 145, 20187 

29 

 

SECTION 15. ALLOWANCE FOR USE OF PRIVATE AUTOMOBILES 
 

A. MILEAGE RATES PAYABLE.  Effective July 1, 1993, mileage allowance for use of 

personal vehicles on Housing Authority business shall be the current maximum mileage 

allowance established by the U.S. Department of Treasury Internal Revenue Service. This rate 

shall be adjusted during the term of this contract effective January 1
st
 of each proceeding year. 

 

B. MINIMUM ALLOWANCE.  An employee who is required by his/her unit supervisor to use 

his/her private automobile at least eight days in any month on Housing Authority business 

shall not receive less than ten dollars ($10.00) in that month for the use of his/her automobile. 

 

C. PREMIUM ALLOWANCE.  An employee who is required by his/her unit supervisor to use 

his/her private automobile at least fifteen (15) days in any month and, in connection with such 

use, is also regularly required to carry in his/her private automobile Housing Authority 

records, manuals, and supplies necessary to his/her job of such bulk and weight (20  pounds 

or more) that they may not be transported by hand, shall be compensated an additional twelve 

dollars ($12.00) per month for any such month. 

 

D. REIMBURSEMENT FOR PROPERTY DAMAGE.  In the event that an employee, 

required by his/her unit supervisor to use a private automobile on Housing Authority business, 

should incur property damage in connection with a vehicle accident, and the employee is 

unable to recover the costs of such property damage from either his/her own insurance 

company, or from any other driver, or other source, such costs shall be paid to such employee 

of the Housing Authority, in a sum not exceeding two-hundred dollars ($200.00), provided 

that any claims the employee may have against his/her insurance company or any third party 

have been litigated or settled, and provided, further, that the employee is not found guilty of a 

violation of the California Vehicle Code or Penal Code in connection with the accident 

causing such damage. 

 

E. MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT INSURANCE CONDITIONS.  An employee who uses 

his/her private automobile for Housing Authority business and applies for reimbursement 

shall have insurance on said vehicle in accordance with the California Department of Motor 

Vehicles laws and rules. 

 

F. MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT REQUESTS.  Requests for mileage reimbursement must 

be submitted within sixty (60) days of the end of the month for which reimbursement is 

requested. 

 

 

SECTION 16. TWO WEEKS' NOTICE UPON TERMINATION 
 

In the event of the termination of an employee subject to this Memorandum of Understanding for a 

cause other than intoxication on the job, gross insubordination, dishonesty, or conviction of a felony 

which substantially relates to the employee's job, the appointing authority or his/her designated agent 

shall give to such employee a written notice of termination no less than ten (10) working days prior to 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  5-1.

ATTACHMENT A



 

HACA – SEIU 1021 MOU 
June 1565, 20175 – June 145, 20187 

30 

the effective date of said termination, except that a new employee having less than ten (10) work days 

of Housing Authority service shall be given five (5) working days’ notice prior to the effective date 

of termination. 
 

In the event, however, that such employee is not on the job on the date he/she would be entitled to 

such notice, it shall be mailed to him/her on such date.  Time spent on the job during such ten (10)-

day notice period by a probationary employee shall not be counted toward completion of the 

probationary period. The Housing Authority agrees to furnish a copy of any such notice to the Union 

if the employee so requests in writing, but failure to receive such notice shall not invalidate such 

termination. 

 

 

SECTION 17. AFFIRMATIVE ACTION COMMITTEE 
 
A. APPOINTMENT OF COMMITTEE.  The Unions may appoint a committee consisting of 

two employees as Union representatives to meet with the Affirmative Action Officer. 

 

B. MEETINGS.  The Affirmative Action Committee shall meet by mutual agreement of the 

parties, at times and places to be decided by the parties. 

 

C. RECOMMENDATIONS.  The recommendations and deliberations of said Committee shall 

be advisory on the Housing Authority including its departments, commissions, and personnel. 

 

D. GOALS.  The goals and objectives of said Committee shall be those set forth in the Housing 

Commission Resolution #531 adopted on April 10, 1991. 

 
 

SECTION 18. SAFETY 
 
A. HOUSING AUTHORITY SAFETY COMMITTEES.  The Union shall have the right to 

participate in any Housing Authority safety committee or in any other formal or informal 

arrangement relating to safety as may currently be in effect.  The Union shall further have the 

right to initiate a safety committee or other formal or informal arrangement relating to safety 

as may be appropriate to the work situation in the event no such committee or other 

arrangement exists. 

 

B. HOUSING AUTHORITY TIME.  Employees who have been formally designated as Union 

representatives pursuant to Subparagraph  A. shall carry out their duties under this Section on 

Housing Authority time. 

 

 

SECTION 19. NOTIFICATION OF VACANCIES 
 

Employees who desire to make a lateral transfer to another department may request consideration for 

such transfer in accordance with Personnel Rules, Article 9, section 9.9. 

 

 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  5-1.

ATTACHMENT A



 

HACA – SEIU 1021 MOU 
June 1565, 20175 – June 145, 20187 

31 

SECTION 20. GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE  
 

A. DEFINITION.  A grievance is defined as an allegation by an employee or group of 

employees that the Housing Authority has failed to provide a condition of employment which 

is established by the annual salary resolution, by written rules of the Housing Authority or its 

work units, or by this Memorandum of Understanding as adopted by resolution, provided that 

the enjoyment of such right is not made subject to the discretion of the Executive Director or 

the Housing Authority, and provided further, that the condition of employment which is the 

subject matter of the grievance is a matter within the scope of representation as defined in 

California Government Code Section 3504. 

  

A formal grievance can only be initiated by submitting a written document and/or grievance 

form which includes the following required information: 

 

1. Name(s) of grievant; 

2. Class Title(s); 

3. Department(s); 

4. A clear statement of the nature of the grievance (citing applicable ordinance, rules 

or regulations or contract provisions); 

5. The date upon which the event giving rise to the alleged grievance occurred; 

6. The date upon which the informal discussion with the supervisor took place; 

7. A proposed solution to the grievance; 

8. The date of execution of the written grievance/grievance form; 

9. The signature of the grievant(s).   

 

B. EXCLUSION OF PERSONNEL COMMITTEE MATTERS.  The Grievance Procedure 

herein established shall have no application to matters over which the Housing Authority's 

Personnel Committee has jurisdiction pursuant to the Housing Authority's Personnel Rules, 

except in regard to allegations of discrimination as specified in Section 2 and in regard to the 

authorization pursuant to Section 13.D. of this Memorandum of Understanding. 

 

C. DEPARTMENT REVIEW AND ADJUSTMENT OF GRIEVANCES.  The following is 

the procedure to be followed in the resolution of grievances: 

 

1. An employee having a grievance shall first discuss it with his/her immediate 

supervisor and endeavor to work out a satisfactory solution in an informal manner 

with such supervisor. 

 

2. If a satisfactory solution is not accomplished by informal discussion, the employee 

shall have the right to consult with and be assisted by a representative of his/her own 

choice in this and all succeeding steps of this subparagraph C. and may thereafter file 

a grievance in writing with his/her immediate supervisor within twenty (20) working 

days after the date of such informal discussion.   

  

 Within twenty (20) working days after receipt of any written grievance, the immediate 

supervisor shall return a copy of the written grievance to the employee with his/her 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  5-1.

ATTACHMENT A



 

HACA – SEIU 1021 MOU 
June 1565, 20175 – June 145, 20187 

32 

answer thereto in writing.  If the grievance is not resolved at this level, the employee 

shall have twenty (20) working days from receipt of the answer within which to file an 

appeal to the Personnel Officer. 

 

            3. The Personnel Officer shall have twenty (20) working days after receipt of written 

appeal in which to review and answer the grievance in writing.  If the grievance is not 

resolved at this level, the employee or his/her representative shall have twenty (20) 

working days from receipt of the answer within which to file an appeal to the 

Executive Director. 

 

            4.   The Executive Director shall have twenty (20) working days after receipt of written 

appeal in which to review, hold hearings, and answer the grievance in writing.  Unless 

waived by mutual agreement of the employee or his/her representative and the 

Executive Director, a hearing is required at this step; and the employee and his/her 

representative shall have the right to be present at, and participate in, such hearing.  

The time limit at this step may be extended by mutual agreement between the 

Executive Director and the employee or his/her representative. 

 

5.   The Union may in its own name, file a grievance alleging that the Housing Authority 

has failed to provide it some organizational right which is established by the Housing 

Commission's Employer/Employee Relations Rules, by written rules of the Housing 

Authority or its work units, or by this Memorandum of Understanding as adopted by 

ordinance, provided that such right is not made subject to the discretion of the 

department.  Such Union grievances shall be filed with the Executive Director and 

heard and determined pursuant to the provisions of this fourth (4
th

) step of the 

grievance procedure. 

 

D. WAIVER OF APPEAL STEPS.  If the grievance is not resolved after the first-line 

supervisor has answered it in writing, the Union and the Executive Director may by mutual 

agreement waive review of the grievance at the Personnel Officer level in those cases in 

which such level of management is without authority to resolve the grievance as required by 

the employee.  Grievances raised pursuant to Section 2.A. which allege sexual harassment by 

the first-line supervisor may be filed initially with the Personnel Officer; grievances alleging 

sexual harassment by the Personnel Officer may be filed initially with the Executive Director. 

 

E. BINDING ARBITRATION OF GRIEVANCES.  In the event that the grievance is not 

resolved in Step 4 of  subparagraph C. herein, the grievant or his/her representative may, 

within thirty (30) days after receipt of the decision of the Executive Director made pursuant to 

said subparagraph C., request that the grievance be heard by an arbitrator, by filing a written 

request for arbitration with the Executive Director.  Should the Union or grievant 

subsequently decide to abandon the grievance before the arbitration is held, then they shall 

promptly so advise the Housing Authority. 

 

F. SELECTION OF ARBITRATOR.  Within ten (10) working days from the receipt of a 

request for arbitration, the Executive Director shall meet with the employee and/or his/her 

representative to attempt to select an arbitrator by mutual agreement.  If the Executive 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  5-1.

ATTACHMENT A



 

HACA – SEIU 1021 MOU 
June 1565, 20175 – June 145, 20187 

33 

Director and the employee or his/her representative are unable to agree on the selection of an 

arbitrator, they shall jointly request the State Mediation and Conciliation Service to submit a 

list of five (5) qualified arbitrators.  The Executive Director and/or his/her representative and 

the employee or his/her representative shall then alternately strike names from the list until 

only one name remains, and that person shall serve as arbitrator  Participation in  the selection 

of the arbitrator to conduct the arbitration hearing shall take place within one-hundred and 

twenty (120) days of the receipt of the request for arbitration, otherwise the grievance shall be 

deemed abandoned. 

 

G. DUTY OF ARBITRATOR.  Except when an agreed statement of facts is submitted by the 

parties, it shall be the duty of the arbitrator to hear and consider evidence submitted by the 

parties. The arbitrator shall have no power to amend this Memorandum of Understanding, a 

resolution of the Housing Authority Board of Commissioners, the Housing Authority of 

Alameda County Personnel Rules, the Employer-Employee Relations Rules of the Housing 

Authority of Alameda County, ordinance, state law, or written rules of the Housing Authority 

or its work units, or to recommend such an amendment. 

 

H. PAYMENT OF COSTS AND ARBITRATOR’S FEES.     The cost of arbitration, 

including fees and expenses of the arbitrator and the recorder, shall be borne equally by the 

parties. 

 

I. EFFECT OF FAILURE OF TIMELY ACTION.  Failure of the employee to file an appeal 

within the required time limit at any step shall constitute an abandonment of the grievance.  

Failure of the Housing Authority to respond within the time limit at any step shall result in an 

automatic advancement of the grievance to the next step. 

 

J. LIMITATION OF STALE GRIEVANCES.  A grievance shall be void unless presented 

within sixty (60) calendar days from the date upon which the Housing Authority has allegedly 

failed to provide a condition of employment.  In no event shall any grievance include a claim 

for money relief for more than a sixty day (60) period. 

 

K. EXCLUSION OF NON-RECOGNIZED ORGANIZATIONS.  For the purpose of this 

Section, the provisions of Section 1. of the Memorandum shall be construed to limit the 

employee's right of selection of a representative to the extent that agents of any other 

employee organization as defined in Article 2.6 of the Employer-Employee Relations Rules of 

the Housing Authority of Alameda County, which is not a party to this Memorandum of 

Understanding, are specifically excluded from so acting. 

 

The Union shall be notified of all grievances filed pursuant to Section 20.C.2.  In those cases 

in which the employee elects to represent himself/herself, or arranges for independent 

representation, the Housing Authority shall make no settlement or award which shall be 

inconsistent with the terms and conditions of this Memorandum of Understanding.  In the 

event the Union shall determine that such inconsistent award has been made, the Union, on its 

own behalf, may file a grievance pursuant to subparagraph C.5. of this Section for the purpose 

of amending such award,  In the event any unrepresented or independently represented 

employee shall elect to go to arbitration under subsection E. hereof, the Union may elect to be 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  5-1.

ATTACHMENT A



 

HACA – SEIU 1021 MOU 
June 1565, 20175 – June 145, 20187 

34 

a full and equal party to such proceeding for the purpose of protecting the interests of its 

members in negotiated conditions of employment. 

 

L. GRIEVANCE RIGHTS FOR FORMER EMPLOYEES.  A person who because of 

dismissal, resignation, or layoff is no longer a Housing Authority employee may file and 

pursue a grievance at the Executive Director level and may also pursue such grievance 

through the remaining levels of the grievance procedure, including binding arbitration, 

provided that the grievance is timely filed as provided in subsection J. hereof, that the 

grievance is filled no later than thirty (30) calendar days from date of issuance of the warrant 

complained of, that the issue would otherwise be grievable under this Section; and provided 

further, however, that under no circumstances may a former employee file or pursue any 

grievance unless it relates solely to whether such person's final pay warrant(s) correctly 

reflected the final salary, or fringe benefits taken in the form of cash owed to such person. 

 

 

SECTION 21. DISCIPLINARY APPEALS 
 

The Housing Authority agrees to continue in effect, during the term of this Memorandum, that 

provision of  Article 13.4 of the Personnel Rules that provides access to binding arbitration of 

disciplinary appeals for tenured employees.  However, the Housing Authority and the Union reserve 

the right to propose changes in the procedures specified in  Article 13.4 for the purposes of 

expediting or otherwise improving the arbitration process. 

 

 

SECTION 22. DISABILITY INSURANCE BENEFITS 
 

The Housing Authority shall continue to participate under the State Disability Insurance (SDI) 

Program.  SDI premiums shall be shared equally by the employee and the Housing Authority. 

 

An employee otherwise eligible for disability insurance benefits shall have the choice of: 

 

1. Not applying for disability insurance benefits and using accrued paid sick leave and 

then vacation leave, compensating time off, Floating Holiday pay, and/or with the 

consent of the Executive Director, discretionary major medical supplemental paid sick 

leave; or 

 

2. Applying for disability insurance benefits and using accrued paid sick leave and/or 

vacation leave and/or compensating time off and/or Floating Holiday pay, and/or, with 

the consent of the Executive Director, discretionary major medical supplemental paid 

sick leave as a supplement to the disability insurance benefits.  The amount of such 

supplement for any hour of any normal work day shall not exceed the difference 

between eighty percent (80%) of the employee's normal gross salary rate including 

premium and differential pay and any disability insurance benefits the employee 

receives.  The employee’s accrued sick leave, discretionary major medical 

supplemental paid sick leave, vacation leave, compensating time off, and/or Floating 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  5-1.

ATTACHMENT A



 

HACA – SEIU 1021 MOU 
June 1565, 20175 – June 145, 20187 

35 

Holiday balances shall be charged only for the hours (to the nearest 1/10th of an hour) 

represented by the amount paid as such supplement.  Hours, including fractions 

thereof, charged against the employee's accrued sick leave, discretionary major 

medical supplemental paid sick leave, vacation leave, compensating time off, and/or 

Floating Holiday balances as supplements to disability insurance benefits will be 

regarded as hours of paid leave of absence. 

 

Vacation and sick leave shall be accrued sick leave, discretionary major medical 

supplemental paid sick leave, vacation leave, compensating time off, and/or Floating 

Holiday balances to the normal pay period.  For purposes of determining eligibility for 

the Housing Authority's hospital and medical care contributions and dental coverage, 

employees who are receiving a supplement to disability insurance benefits paid from 

and charged to accrued sick leave, a discretionary major medical supplemental paid 

sick leave, vacation leave, compensating time off, and/or Floating Holiday balances 

shall be regarded as on full-time paid status with regard to the days for which such 

supplement is paid. 

 

In the event that a paid holiday occurs during a period of absence for which the 

employee receives disability insurance benefits, holiday pay shall be pro-rated in 

proportion to the amount paid to the employee as a supplement to the disability 

insurance benefit from accrued sick leave, discretionary major medical supplemental 

paid sick leave, vacation leave, compensating time off, and/or Floating Holiday 

balances on the day before and the day after the holiday. 

 

The group health care health care providers will permit employees who, because of 

exhaustion of their accrued sick leave, discretionary major medical supplemental paid 

sick leave, vacation leave, compensating time off, and/or Floating Holidays balances, 

are dropped from health and/or dental plan coverage to re-enter the group plans upon 

returning to full-time work.  Should the Housing Authority agree to pay more than 

fifty percent (50%) of the SDI premium, improve the level of integration or improve 

the rate of accrual of benefits for any bargaining unit not represented by SEIU, such 

improvement shall be extended to employees represented by SEIU. 

 

 

SECTION 23. RETIREMENT PLAN 
 

A. Union and Housing Authority agree to meet and confer with regard to the retirement plan and 

to endeavor to reach agreement on a plan which will be less costly to the Housing Authority 

and employees. The meeting and conferring shall include consideration of proposals relating 

to benefits, funding sources, minimum retirement age, and a multi-tier system. 

 

B. Each full-time, regular employee entering Housing Authority service on or after August 19, 

2011, shall participate in the Alameda County Employee’s Retirement Association and be 

enrolled at the Tier 2 level of benefits. 

 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  5-1.

ATTACHMENT A



 

HACA – SEIU 1021 MOU 
June 1565, 20175 – June 145, 20187 

36 

C. Represented employees who are participants in the Alameda County Employee Retirement 

Association as of June 10, 2011, shall have a one-time opportunity, at a date selected by the 

Authority, to switch from Tier 1 to the Tier 2 level of contributions and benefits.  Such 

election shall be irrevocable.  

 

 

SECTION 24. CONTRACTING OUT 
 

The Housing Authority shall give reasonable prior notice to the Union before entering into any 

contract with private firms or other employers for the performance of services currently performed by 

employees represented herein, when such contract can reasonably be expected to result in the layoff 

or reduction in hours of represented employees or in the permanent reduction of positions represented 

herein.  If requested by the Union, the Housing Authority shall meet and confer with the Union on the 

decision to authorize any such contract prior to a final decision.  If, as the result of any such contract, 

it becomes necessary to effect a reduction in force of employees represented herein, the Union 

reserves the right to request further meeting and conferring pursuant to Section 25 of  this 

Memorandum of Understanding. 

 

Nothing herein shall limit the right of the Housing Authority to make a decision to enter into 

contracts for services. 

 

The Housing Authority may contract out for housing inspection services during the term of this 

Agreement without further negotiations with the Union. 

 

 

SECTION 25. TEMPORARY EMPLOYEES 
 

The Housing Authority shall not fill a budgeted vacant position with a temporary employee or 

employees for more than twelve (12) months.  This does not apply to vacancies arising from an 

employee’s leave of absence, assignment to another department, assignment to a different job 

classification or positions created for limited term assignments. 

 

The Housing Authority shall provide the Housing Authority of the County of Alameda Union 

president, Secretary and Shop Stewards with a monthly printout of temporary employees by 

department, date of hire and position. 

 

 

SECTION 26. NOTICE OF LAYOFFS 
 

The Housing Authority shall give thirty (30) calendar days prior notice to the Union before effecting 

any layoffs which materially affect employees represented under this agreement.  Upon receiving 

such notices, the Union may meet and confer regarding the effect of the layoff. 

 

 
 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  5-1.

ATTACHMENT A



 

HACA – SEIU 1021 MOU 
June 1565, 20175 – June 145, 20187 

37 

SECTION 27. EFFECT OF MANDATED FRINGE BENEFITS 
 

In the event that state or federal law shall mandate the granting to employees of benefits or other 

terms and conditions of employment which duplicate, supplement, or otherwise impinge upon 

benefits or other terms and conditions of employment set forth herein, the provisions of this 

Memorandum of Understanding so duplicated, supplemented, or impinged upon shall be void and of 

no further effect as of the date the mandated benefit or term and conditions of employment becomes 

effective; but the parties hereto shall then meet and confer with regard to such benefit or other term 

and condition of employment in order to assure that the state or federal mandate does not result in an 

overall loss of benefits to employees. 

 

 

SECTION 28. EDUCATIONAL STIPEND 

Subject to the approval of the Executive Director or his/her designee of any plan submitted by an 

employee to engage in job-related educational courses, which shall maintain or upgrade the 

employee's skills on the job, or prepare the employee for promotional opportunities, the Housing 

Authority will pay approved educational expenses up to six-hundred dollars ($600.00) per employee, 

per fiscal year, and effective June 12, 2009, up to eight-hundred dollars ($800.00) per fiscal year.  

More than one educational plan may be approved in any fiscal year, but in no event shall the stipend 

exceed six-hundred dollars ($600.00) per employee, per fiscal year and effective June 12, 2009, 

eight-hundred dollars ($800.00) per fiscal year.  Evidence of successful completion of the education 

course shall be provided by the employee, prior to reimbursement by the Housing Authority. 

 

 

SECTION 29. LIFE INSURANCE 
 

The Housing Authority agrees to furnish Life Insurance coverage in the amount of twenty-thousand 

dollars ($20,000.00) per employee, for all employees having six (6) months of Housing Authority 

service. 

 

The Housing Authority reserves the right to select the insurer and the Housing Authority shall pay the 

full cost of the premium. 

 
 

SECTION 30. UNIFORM ALLOWANCE 
 

The Housing Authority shall initially provide at an employee’s request, each tenured Housing 

Maintenance Worker with: five (5) uniform shirts, four (4) uniform pants, and one (1) uniform jacket;  

thereafter, said employee shall receive upon their request: five (5) uniform shirts and five (5) uniform 

pants every twelve (12) months. 

 

The Housing Authority shall initially provide at an employee’s request, each tenured Groundsworker 

with: five (5) uniform shirts and one (1) uniform jacket.  Thereafter, said employee shall receive upon 

their request five (5) uniform shirts every twelve (12) months. 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  5-1.

ATTACHMENT A



 

HACA – SEIU 1021 MOU 
June 1565, 20175 – June 145, 20187 

38 

Work Boots.  Each tenured employee shall receive a reimbursement of the actual cost, not to exceed 

two-hundred dollars ($200.00) for non-slip, thick soled, high top, leather, work boots once every 

twelve (12) months.  Such uniforms and work boots must be worn in the performance of maintenance 

duties unless waived by the employee’s supervisor. 

 

Temporary employees shall be eligible for the uniform shirts after six (6) months and shall return said 

shirts to the Housing Authority at the end of their temporary employment if they do not become 

tenured. 

 

 

SECTION 31. SAVINGS CLAUSE 
 

If any provision of  this Memorandum of Understanding shall be held invalid by operation of law or 

by any court of competent jurisdiction, or if compliance with or enforcement of any provision shall 

be restrained by any tribunal, the remainder of this Memorandum of Understanding shall not be 

affected thereby, and the parties shall enter into negotiation for the sole purpose of arriving at a 

mutually satisfactory replacement for such provision. 

 

 

SECTION 32. SCOPE OF THE AGREEMENT 

 
This  Memorandum of Understanding sets forth the full and entire understanding of the parties 

regarding matters set forth herein on all subjects upon which the parties did bargain or could have 

bargained. 

 

Except as provided in the “Savings Clause”, each party agrees that the other shall not be obligated to 

bargain collectively, during the term of  this  Memorandum of Understanding, with respect to any 

subject matter that could have been bargained, or that is referred to or addressed in this  

Memorandum of Understanding.  Any and all prior or existing  Memoranda of Understanding, 

understandings, or agreements that conflict with the matters set forth herein, whether formal or 

informal, are hereby superseded and terminated in their entirety.  Existing policies, rules, ordinances 

and resolutions that do not conflict with the matters set forth herein remain in effect.  

 

 

SECTION 33. ENACTMENT 
 

It is agreed that the foregoing shall be jointly submitted to the Housing Authority of the County of 

Alameda Housing Commission by the Executive Director and the Unions for the Commissioners' 

consideration and approval. 

 

Upon such adoption, the provisions of this Memorandum of Understanding shall supersede and 

control over conflicting or inconsistent Housing Authority resolutions. 

 

 

 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  5-1.

ATTACHMENT A



 

HACA – SEIU 1021 MOU 
June 1565, 20175 – June 145, 20187 

39 

SECTION 34. NO STRIKE/NO LOCKOUT 

 

A. During the term of the Agreement, SEIU, its members and representatives agree that it and 

they will not engage in, authorize, or sanction a strike, stoppage of work, or withdrawal of 

service. 

 

B. The Housing Authority will not lockout employees during the term of this Memorandum of 

Understanding. 

 

 

SECTION 35. TERM OF MEMORANDUM 

 

This Memorandum of Understanding shall become effective as of June 1565, 20175, except as 

otherwise provided herein, upon the approval of the Housing Authority of the County of Alameda 

Housing Commission and shall remain in effect up to and including June 145, 20187. 

 

 

Signed and entered into this __________ day of ________________________ 20176: 
 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE 

COUNTY OF ALAMEDA: 

 

SEIU LOCAL 1021: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  5-1.

ATTACHMENT A



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF ALAMEDA COUNTY
BI‐WEEKLY SCHEDULE ‐ FISCAL YEAR 2017‐18
COLA Increase not applicable
EFFECTIVE DATE:  6/16/2017 pp 17‐14

ITEM # CLASSIFICATION STEP 1 STEP 2 STEP 3 STEP 4 STEP 5 LOW HIGH HOURLY STEP 1 STEP 2 STEP 3 STEP 4 STEP 5

3604 Clerical Aide 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,055.30 2,286 2,286 75 ‐     ‐     ‐     ‐     14.07  

3615 Eligibility Clerk  0.00 1,616.40 1,682.60 1,753.30 1,822.30 3,502 3,948 75 ‐     21.55 22.43 23.38 24.30  

 

3618   Administrative Clerk 1,714.90 1,788.00 1,858.50 1,952.60 2,031.20 3,716 4,401 75 22.87 23.84 24.78 26.03 27.08  

 

3622   Account Specialist 1,793.40 1,873.90 1,954.40 2,042.00 2,131.50 3,886 4,618 75 23.91 24.99 26.06 27.23 28.42  

 

3625 Stenographer 0.00 0.00 1,694.20 1,776.60 1,852.60 3,671 4,014 75 ‐     ‐     22.59 23.69 24.70  

 

3635   Eligibility Technician  1,901.80 2,002.40 2,085.60 2,165.90 2,259.90 4,121 4,896 75 25.36 26.70 27.81 28.88 30.13  

 

3638 Eligibility Leadworker  2,112.70 2,209.50 2,322.80 2,419.70 2,536.60 4,578 5,496 75 28.17 29.46 30.97 32.26 33.82  

 

3640 Housing Technician 1,831.30 1,926.90 2,019.20 2,120.30 2,225.00 3,968 4,821 75 24.42 25.69 26.92 28.27 29.67  

 

3645 Housing Op Trainee 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,950.20 4,225 4,225 75 ‐     ‐     ‐     ‐     26.00  

   

3650 Housing Specialist 2,247.20 2,350.30 2,458.80 2,578.20 2,696.50 4,869 5,842 75 29.96 31.34 32.78 34.38 35.95  

 

3652   Housing Inspector 1,959.00 2,037.50 2,136.10 2,243.50 2,349.50 4,245 5,091 75 26.12 27.17 28.48 29.91 31.33  

   

3655 Housing Management Assistant 2,023.00 2,116.10 2,211.10 2,322.30 2,426.30 4,383 5,257 75 26.97 28.21 29.48 30.96 32.35  

3656 Leasing Svc Leadworker 2,424.60 2,544.80 2,671.20 2,805.80 2,943.30 5,253 6,377 75 32.33 33.93 35.62 37.41 39.24  

 

3657 Housing Manager 2,424.60 2,544.70 2,671.20 2,805.80 2,943.30 5,253 6,377 75 32.33 33.93 35.62 37.41 39.24  

3658 Housing Management Leadworker 2,587.30 2,723.50 2,866.80 3,017.70 3,176.60 5,606 6,883 75 34.50 36.31 38.22 40.24 42.35  

3662 FSS Coordinator 2,023.00 2,116.10 2,211.10 2,322.30 2,426.30 4,383 5,257 75 26.97 28.21 29.48 30.96 32.35  

 

3661 FSS Leadworker  2,225.50 2,327.70 2,432.20 2,554.40 2,668.80 4,822 5,782 75 29.67 31.04 32.43 34.06 35.58  

3626 Secretary 1,756.00 1,845.50 1,938.60 2,038.10 2,139.00 3,805 4,635 75 23.41 24.61 25.85 27.17 28.52  

3690 Groundsworker 1,874.90 1,952.30 2,053.50 2,139.50 2,234.90 4,062 4,842 80 23.44 24.40 25.67 26.74 29.80  

 

3680 Hsg Maintenance Worker I 0.00 0.00 1,755.60 1,840.50 1,908.40 3,804 4,135 80 ‐     ‐     21.95 23.01 25.45  

 

3685 Hsg Maintenance Worker II 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,610.10 5,655 5,655 80 ‐     ‐     ‐     ‐     34.80  

APPROXIMATE  Hourly Rates

Monthly

HACA AGENDA ITEM NO.:  5-1.

ATTACHMENT A


	HOUSING COMMISSION AGENDA FOR 09/13/2017
	MINUTES OF THE 07/26/2017 COMMISSION MEETING
	5.  NEW BUSINESS - 09/13/2017
	5-1.  Resolution No. 11-17 Approving Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) wtih SEIU Local 1021
	Exhibit:  Resolution No. 11-17
	Exhibit:  Attachment A - Revised Successor MOU

	5-2.  Action:  Section 8 HCV Payment Standards
	5-3.  Family Self-Sufficiency (FSS) Program Report
	Report:  FSS Program Summary - August 2017
	Report:  FSS Program Summary - September 2017





